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June 6, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with New Hampshire Alcohol and
Drug Abuse Counselors Association, d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive
Disorders (VC#170428), Concord, NH to expand training opportunities to the Alcohol and Other
Drug provider system, by increasing the price limitation by $500,000 from $1,462,731 to
$1,962,731 with no change to the contract completion date of June 30, 2024, effective July 1,
2023, upon Governor and Council approval. 13.20% Federal Funds. 14.80% General Funds.
72.00% Other Funds (Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on August 26, 2020, (Item
#16), and April 21, 2021, (Item #16), and June 15, 2022, (Item #35), and most recently amended
on January 18, 2023 (Item #10).

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024 with the authority to adjust
budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through
the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is amending the scope of services
and adding funding at the direction of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs.
The Contractor is uniquely qualified to build off of the framework of trainings provided to the New
Hampshire's Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care System workforce since August 2020.

The purpose of this request is to add Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs
(Governor's Commission) and Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant funding
to support the expansion and enhancement of the Contractor's framework to increase training
and technical assistance to the Alcohol and Other Drug provider system. The scope revisions, as
recommended by the Governor's Commission, will allow the Contractor to implement trainings on
the impact of brain injuries and overdoses; methamphetamine use; Mental Health First Aid for
youth and young adult peers, and law enforcement; and suicide prevention. The additional funding
will support the Contractor's capacity to develop, implement, and provide evidenced-based
prevention, treatment and recovery support trainings and other professional development
activities to the state's Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care System workforce.
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The Contractor will continue to provide high-quality, competency and skills-based
professional development activities that address the needs of New Hampshire's Alcohol and
Other Drug Continuum of Care System workforce.

In State Fiscal Year 2023 the Contractor completed the following trainings for Alcohol and
Other Drugs workforce Continuum of Care:

•  70 In-person trainings
•  4 Quarterly trainings for the Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
•  2 Published webinars '

•  8 Trainings In the North Country

Approximately 4.750 individuals will participate in professional development activities
through June 30, 2024.

The Department will continue monitoring services through the review, of post-event
surveys, monthly progress reports and annual site visits to ensure training events meet the goals
and objectives of the program.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer
professional growth and learning opportunities for New Hampshire's Alcohol and Other Drug
Continuum of Care System workforce, youth and young adult peers and law enforcement; which
may result in a decrease in knowledge, skills, aptitude, and experience amongst prevention,
treatment, and recovery service providers, youth and young adult peers and law enforcement.
The consequences of this include lower quality services and supports to individuals and families
impacted by substance misuse.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.959, and FAIN #TI085821.

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, additional
General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

for:

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL

HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds )

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058501 $110,119 SO $110,119

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058501 $110,119 SO $110,119

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058501 $110,000 SO $110,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058501 $360,000 $360,000

Subtotal $330,238 $360,000 $690,238

05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL

HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 $105,831 $0 $105,831

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 $105,831 50 $105,831

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 $105,831 SO $105,831

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 $0 $100,000 $100,000

Subtotal $317,493 $100,000 $417,493

05-95-92-920510-33950000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL

HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESS GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $25,000 SO $25,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal $25,000 $0 $25,000

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL

HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, NH STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $15,000 SO ■  $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057046 $25,708 SO $25,708



2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057046 $99,292 $0 $99,292

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057050 $175,000 $0 $175,000

Subtotal $315,000 $0 $315,000

05-95-92-920510-19810000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL

HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SABG ADDITIONAL (100% Federal Funds)

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92059501 $0 $0 $0

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92059501 $150,000 $0 $150,000

Subtotal $150,000 $0 $150,000

05-95-94-940010-24650000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL

HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, ARPA RECOVERY (100% Other Funds)

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc
00FRF602PH9

527A
$137,500 $137,500

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc
00FRF602PH9

527A
$187,500 $187,500

Subtotal $325,000 $325,000

05-95-92-922010-41170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL

HEALTH, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES - CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT (100% General funds)

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Revised Budget

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204117 $0 $40,000 $40,000

' Subtotal $0 $40,000 $40,000

Total $1,462,731.00 $500,000 $1,962,731
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Workforce contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association, d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute
on Addictive Disorders ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 26, 2020, (Item #16), and as amended on April 21, 2021, (Item #16), and June 15, 2022, (Item
#35), and most recently amended on January 18, 2023.(Item #10), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended in consideration of
certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval frorri 'the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and .

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,962,731

2. Modify Exhibit 8, Scope of Services, Section 1. Statement of Work, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph
1.2.2, Subparagraph 1.2.2.4, to read:

1.2.2.4. In State Fiscal Year 2024, the Contractor must ensure:

,  1.2.2.4.1. A minimum of 108 live, trainings with in-person and virtual attendance options
are offered, which include a minimum of six (6) training offered in the northern
region of NH.

1.2.2.4.2. Training topics must be approved by the Department and include but are not
limited to:

1.2.2.4.2.1. Skill building practice series.

1.2.2.4.2.2. Targeted training for:

-1.2.2.4.2.2.1. Emerging issues, including at least eight (8) suicide
prevention related topics;

1.2.2.4.2.2.2. Evidence-based prevention, treatment and
recovery strategies for StimUD arid co-occurring
mental health disorders with adhesion to harm

reduction for youth ages 12-18, young adulthood
ages 18-25 and adults that include, but are not
limited to:

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.1. Contirigency Management.

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.2. Community Reinforcernent

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association
d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials
RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01-A04 Page 1 of5 Date r;/7/?n?^
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Approach.

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.3. Cognitive Behavioral Therapy.

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.4. Motivational Interviewing.

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.5. Exercise Therapy.

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.6. Mindfulness; and

1.2.2.4.2.2.3. Impact of brain injury and overdose;

1.2.2.4.2.2.4. Methamphetamine; and

1.2.2.4.2.2.5. Mental health first aid for youth and young adult
peers, and law enforcement.

1.2.2.4.2.3. Other identified evidence-based practice skills.

1.2.2.4.3. Trainings are approved by the Department and include topics as described in
Subparagraph 1.2.2.4.2, above.

1.2.2.4.4. Trainings on StimUD are selected in consultation with people with lived
experience with stimulant use.

1.2.2.4.5. A minimum of five (5) webinar^and four (4) learning module trainings are
offered. . , '

3. Modify Exhibit 8, Scope of Services, Sectioh 1. Statement of Work, Subsection 1.18., to read:

1.18. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of 10% of revenue generated from registration fees
collected are reinvested to enhance the training program, as approved by the Department.

4. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms. Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 39.00% Federal Funds

1.1.1. Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant (SAPTBG), as awarded
on 9/24/20, 9/16/21, 2/10/22 and 2/15/23, by the Department of Health and Human
Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA),
Center for Substance Abuse Treatment (CSAT), Assistance Listing # 93.959, and
FAIN TI083041, TI083464. TI084659, TI085821.

1.1.2. NH State Opioid Response Grant (SOR). as awarded on 9/30/18, by SAMHSA,
CSAT, Assistance Listing # 93.788, FAIN T1081685.

1.1.3. NH Partnership for Success Initiative Grant {PFS2) as awarded on 9/30/15 by
SAMHSA, Center for Substance Abuse Prevention (CSAP), Assistance Listing #
93.243, and FAIN SP020796.

1.1.4. DHHS, Substance Abuse & Mental Health Services Administration, SAMHSA-
SAPT BG as awarded on 5/17/21 by SAMSHA Substance Abuse Preventative
Treatment (SAPT), Assistance Listing #93.959, FAIN TI083955.

1.2. 9.27% General Funds.

1.3. 51.73% Other Funds (Governor Commission Funds).

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as specified

— OS

W
New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association
d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders A-S-1.2 Contractor lnilials_
RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01-A04 Page 2 of 5 Date_fi/z/2n23.
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in Exhibit C-1, Amendment #1 Budget through Exhibit C-4, Amendment #4, SPY 2024 Budget.

6. Modify Exhibit C-4, Amendment #3, SPY 2024 Budget by replacing It in its entirety with Exhibit C-
4, Amendment #4, SPY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9f
New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association
d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials
RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01-A04 Page 3of5 .Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1. 2023, upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/7/2023

Date

-OoeuSign«d by:

^ S.
EP&CCWC46»»«<a..

Name;Katja s. fox

Title:
Di rector

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors
Association, d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on
Addictive Disorders

6/7/2023

Date

^OoeuSignid by:

■CBAa8P«P?90<Aa..

Name: Diane Fontneau

Title:
President Board of Directors

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association
d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders
RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01-A04 Page 4 of 5

A-S-1.2
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSlgned by:uocuaigneo Dy:

f6/8/2023 -fotauvt

Date Name: Robyn cuarino
Title:

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire'at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association _
d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders A-S-1.2
RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01-A04 Page 5 of 5
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ExIiM C-4, AnwcMtoMn) 4. SPY 2024 eutfgtl

,

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

C entree tor Neme:New Hampshirs Akelrol and Drug Abuse Counselors Assoc.. dlWa New HanipsNrs Tranfeig bntauts on Addlcdve Disorders

Proieet Tiba: TrainSig for the AOD WrrrUorca

Budget Period: JuSy t. M23 •June JO. 2024

TotalProgram Cost Conbacier Shirs r Match Fundtd bv DHK3 censract Chare

Line Kent DKMt Indiract Total Oirsct kidesci Tout Oiract btdeect ToBi

t. Total SetarvAMoet i  34S,23t.OO 3 3 348,231.00 3 6.000.00 3 3 6,000,00 6  342,231,00 3 3  342.251.00

2. Emglovee BenefKs 3  78,7SS.OO 3  • • 3 76,785.00 3 1.320.00 3 3 1,320,00 3  75,465.00 3 3  75.465.00

>. Consutsnls S  64,310,00 3 3 64.310.00 3 3 3 3  64,310.00 3 3  64,310.00

4. Eaiiemen:

Rental S  300,00 3 3 300.00 3 3 3  300,00 3 3  300.00

Reitair and MaMenance 3  460,00 3 3 460.00 3 3 3 3  460,00 3 3  460.00

Ptithase/Deoreclatien 3  $.200,00 3 3 5.200.00 3 3 3 3  SJOO.OO 3 3  5.200.00

S, Suoeies;

Educational 3  10.950.00 3 3 10 950.00 3 3 3 3  10,950,00 3 3  10.050.00

Uti 3 3

Phermecv 3 3

Medical 3 3

Ofllee 3  6,200,00 3 3  0.200.00 3 3  6,200.00 3 3  0.200.00

S. Travel 3  10,100,00 3 3  10,100.00 3 3  10.IOO.OO 3 3  10.100.00

7. OccuMncv 3  39,105,00 3 3  39,105.00 3 ) 3  39.105,00 3 3  39.105.00

S. Ctereri Ewenses

Teteohene 3  2,300,00 3 3  2.300.00 3 3  2.300,00 3 3  2.300.00

Postaoe 3  090,00 3 3  630.00 3 3  650,00 3 3  650.00

SubaCflotions 3  5.950,00 3 3  5.950.00 3 3  5.950,00 3 3  5,950.00

AMtl and Laoal 3  -2.909.00 3 3  2.909.00 3 1  - 2.909,00 3 3  2.909.00

Imirartea 3  4,600,00 3 3  4.600.00 3 3  4.600,00 3 3  4.6M.00

Board EwerBet 3 y 3

9. Sefiwara 3  750,00 3 3  750.00 3 3  750,00 3 3  750.00

10. Marltellno/Coniminlcalioni 3  6.970,00 3 3  6.970.00 3 3  6.970,00 3 3  6,970.00

11. Stall Education and TrsHna 3  3.650,00 3 3  3.650.00 3 3  ̂ 3.650,00 3 3  3.650.00

12. Sieeonlracts/AoreemerKs 3 . 5.000.00 3 3  5.000.00 3 3  5.000,00 3 3  5.000.00

13, Other leDKrlrcdetab mircalofv); -

CE Aeetcabons 3  900.00 3 3  900.00 3 3  900,00 3  900.00

Food/Venue Renal 3  6.760.00 3 3  6.760.00 3 2660.00 3  2.660.00 3  4.100,00 3 3  4,100.00

PartldoafK PoftaKMS hostlnn 3  24.300,00 3 3  24.300.00 3 3  24.300,00 3 3  24.300.00

SchotarsNoS 3  12.500,00 3 3  12.500.00 1 3  12.300,00 3 3  12.500.00

Data Secuitv 3  14.400.00 3 3  14.400.00 3 $  . . 3  14.400,00 3 3  14.400.00

BDAS Sk»ei4tsino Taroeied 3  4.000.00 3 3  4.000.00 3 s 3  4.000,00 3 3  4.000.00

SukkM Prevenion Taioeied 3  40.000.00 3 3  40.000.00 3 % 3  40,000,00 3 3  40.000.00

PFSTameled 3 3 j 3

SOR Adrrdn 3 3 j 3

SOR Targeted 3 • - • 3 3 3

SOR SehebrsNos j 3 3 3

SOR SuttcontraaslAnraemants 3 3 3

TOTAL 3  <97.300.00 3 3  <97,500.00 3 10.000.00 3 3  10,000.00 3  <17400.00 3 3  6l74M.0e

Mfraci As A PcitcfR a> Oincl

NewHsmpsMre Alcohcl snl Other Onjg Cemebn Assoc. d/M New HempsNre TnMng InsUtuleon ArMlcShe Disonlera
RPP-2021-eDA$-OS-TRAIN41-A03 i.

EMM C-4, Amendmen 4. SFY 2024 Budget

Pege I ol 1

Conlnclor Hlieb,
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secreiar>' of State of the Stale ofNcw Mampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL

AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION is a New Hampsltirc Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business

in New Hampshire on November 26. 1985. 1 further certify that ail fees and documents required by the Sccreiaiy of State's ofilcc

have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 89242.

Certificate Number: 0006216493

y
Ik

o

<5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 26th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of Slate
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan. Sccrctarv' of Slate of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE TRAINING

INSTITUTE ON ADDICTIVE DISORDERS is a New I lampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on October 22. 2010. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretaiy of Slate's olTicc have been

received and is in good standing as far as this oiTice is concerned.

Business ID: 637806

Certificate Number: 0006216494

0&

%

Up

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 26th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Sccrctar\' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITy

'' —Chri^ine McKgnna ^ ^ , hereby certify that:{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory) •• •

1, 1 am a duly elected Clerk^ecretary/Officer of New Hampshire Alcohol and nnm Abuse Cnunselom
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
January 26, 2023, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and votina

.  (Date)

VOTED: That Diane Fontneau. President (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association to enter Into
(Name of Corporation/LLC)

contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is
authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable of necessary to affect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have.full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits
on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all
such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 06/07/2023 ( ̂
Signatureof Elected Officer ^ .ZC23
Name: Christine McKenna

Title: President Elect

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MfcVOO/YYYY)

06/07/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Byse Insurance - Laconia

208 Union Avenue ;

Laconia . NH 03246

NAME' • Jennifer Landry
(603)673-1201 (603)524-0748

InfwFAk- ien(ghpminsurance.com

INSURER(S) AFFOROING COVERAGE NAICO

INSURER A' Conlinentai Casualty Company 20443

INSURED

NH ALCOHOL & DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOC.

130 PEMBROKE RD STE 150

130 Pembroke Road. Ste. 150

CONCORD NH 03301

INSURER B : Travelers Property Casualty Co of America (A/R)

INSURERC: CitizensofIllinois 10714

INSURER 0 :

INSURERS':

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL236738457 REVISION NUMBER:

15I5r
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTVyiTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECTTO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLaIMS.

OTUnSDBff POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
TYPE OF INSURANCE

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY Q Q
OTHER:

LOC

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

X

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY X

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OEO

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNEO

AUTOS ONLY

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

RETENTION S

WVD POLICY NUMBER

6025655757

(MM/OO/YYYYl

06/30/2022

(MM/DD/YYYY)

06/30/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES <Ea occurrence)

MEO EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

BAIL

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea aecMcml

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per acckJeni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per eccldeM)

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

2,000,000

1,000,000

10.000

2.000,000

4.000,000

4.000.000

1.000

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandalory in NH)
Kyes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH-
ER .

6JU8-0413N90-8-23 05/03/2023 05/03/2024
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

100.000

E.L. DISEASE . EA EMPLOYEE
100.000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT
500,000

Misc. Professional Liability
LHVH29 508302 06/30/2022 06/30/2023

Per Occurrence

Aggregate

Deductible

1.000,000

3.000,000

1.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddlUonal Remarks Schedule, may be anached If more space Is required)

Work performed during policy period.Owners/Officers/Members excluded from Workers Compensation coverage: Board of Directors.

State of NH Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH-03301-3857
i

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

•  . ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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ADDITIONAL COVERAGES

Ref# Description

Employment PracUces Liability Coverage

Coverage Code

EPLI

Form No. Edition Date

Limit 1

10,000

Limit 2 Limits Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium

Ref# Description

VTAF

Coverage Code Form No. Edition Date

Limit 1. Limit 2 Limits Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium

$1.00

Ref# Description

TERRORISM

Coverage Code

TERR

Form No. Edition Date

Limit 1 Limit 2 Limits Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium

$43.00

Ref# Description

Expense constant

Coverage Code

EXCNT

Form No. Edition Date

Limit 1 Limit 2 Limits Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium

$160.00

Ref# Description

Sched Or Modification

Coverage Code

SCM

Form No. Edition Date

Limit 1 Limit 2 Limits Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium

Ref# Description

Catastrophe

Coverage Code

CATAS

Form No. Edition Date

Limit 1 Limit 2 Limits Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium

$43.00

Ref# Description Coverage Code Form No. Edition Date

Limit 1 Limit 2 Limits Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium

Ref# Description Coverage Code Form No. Edition Date

Limit 1 Limit 2 Limit 3
1

Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium

Ref# Description Coverage Code Form No. Edition Date

Limit 1 Limit 2 Limit S Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium

Ref# Description Coverage Code Form No. Edition Date

Limit 1 Limit 2 Limits Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium

Ref# Description Coverage Code Form No. Edition Date

Limit 1 Limit 2 Limits Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium

OFADTLCV Copyright 2001, AMS Services, Inc.
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Mission: NHADACA's mission is to provide quality

education, workforce development, advocacy, ethical

standards and leadership for addiction professionals. We

empower efforts in prevention, treatment and recovery.
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COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors
Association (the Association), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021 and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association as of December 31, 2021 and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of New Hampshire Alcohol and
Drug Abuse Counselors Association and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a.basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with'
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselors Association's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgement; there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association's ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, arnong other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association's 2020 financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated

.  June 3, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2020, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
May 23, 2022

-2-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2021 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2020

See Independent Auditors' Report

Net Assets Without Net Assets With

Donor Restrictions Donor Restrictions 2021 2020

ASSETS
\

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expense

$  74,193

45,970

3,683

$ 78,241 ;E  152,434 i

45,970

3,683

I  146,327

83,461

7,759

123,846 78,241 202,087 237,547

FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT, at cost

Less accumulated depreciation

76,570

(64,101)

- 76,570

(64,101)

77,420 ,

(63,493)

12,469 - 12,469- 13,927

LONG TERM ASSETS

Security deposit 2,800 2,800 2,800

Total Assets 139,1 15 78,241 217,356 254,274

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

10,529

14,095

- 10,529

14,095

. 5,834

24,624 - 24,624 5,834

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrctions

114,491

.78,241

114,491

■  78,241

227,830

20,610

114,491 78,241 192,732 248,440

Total liabilities and net assets $  139,115 $  . 78,241 :E  217,356 3i  254,274

See Notes to Financial Statements

-3-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2020

See Independent Auditors' Report

2021

Net Assets Without

Donor Restrictions

Net Assets With

Donor Restrictions Total

2020

Total

Revenue

Grant revenue

Contributions, in-kind

Training fees

Membership fees

Other revenue

516,223

"4,235
96,116

7,830

215

80,173 596,396

4,235

96,116

7,830

215

439,236

1,550

105,781

9,693

478

Total revenues 624,619 80,173 704,792 556,738

Net assets released from

donor imposed restrictions 22,542 (22,542) - -

Expenses

Program expenses 710,586 - 710,586 516,867

Administrative expenses 45,049 45,049 21,241

Fundraising 4,865 - 4,865 3,677

Total expenses 760,500 760,500 541,785

Increase (Decrease) in net assets (1 13,339) 57,631 (55,708) 14,953

Net assets, beginning of year 227,830 20,610 248,440 233,487

Net assets, end of year S 1 14,491 S 78,241 S 192,732 S 248,440

See Notes to Financial Statements

-4-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR

THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

See Independent Auditors' Report

Program Management Total Total

Services and General Fundraising 2021 2020

Salaries and wages $ 256,414 $  16,367 $ $ 272,781 S 235,993

Employee benefits 34,859 2,225 - 37,084 21,524

Payroll taxes 19,938 1,273 21,211 20,760

Scholarships/sponsorships 34,318 2,191 - 36,509 16,545

Registration fees 35,156 - 2,244 - 37,400 .

Training 50,614 ■3,231 - 53,845 -

Legal and accounting fees , 13,968 892 - 14,860 1 1,040
Professional services 126,562 8,078 - 134,640 105,831
Trainer fees 47,730 3,047 - 50,777 38,327
Conferences and meetings 5,439 347 - 5,786 3,672
Insurance 2,251 144 - 2,395 2,213
Travel expenses 2,182 139 - 2,321 4,730
Office supplies and expenses 17,022 1,087 - 18,109 12,033
Repairs & maintenance 102 6 - 108 -

Postage 693 44. - 737 ■ 493

Telephone 1,718 no - 1,828 1,682
Education 94 6 - 100 320

Marketing & communication 4,865 - 4,865 9,730 7,355
Bank and credit card fees 9 I - -  10 33

Board expenses 8,578 548 - 9,126 1,452
Occupancy expenses 36,096 2,304 - ■  38,400 38,200
Depreciation 4,950 316 - 5,266 5,124
C0VID-I9 expenses - - - - 10,462
Miscellaneous, expenses 7,028 449 - 7,477 3,996

$ 710,586 $  45,049 $  4,865 $ 760,500 $ 541,785

See Notes to Financial Statements

-  -5- •
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

See Independent Auditors' Report

2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase (decrease) in net assets $ (55,708) $ 14,953

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 5,266 5,124

(Irjcrease) decrease in operating assets:

Accounts receivable 37,491 (82,481)

Prepaid expenses 4,076 (1,655)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accrued expenses 4,695 4,402

Deferred revenue 14,095 -

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 9,915 (59,657)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net cash paid for furniture & equipment (3,808) (3,668)

Net cash (used) by investing activities (3,808) (3,668)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6,107 (63,325)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 146,327 209,652

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 152,434 $ 146,327

See Notes to Financial Statements

-6-



DocuSign Envelope ID; 98C02911-8AB6-4EE2-96FC-D9D6298CB8F7-

NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020
See Independent Auditors' Report

2021 2020

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

in-kind contributions $ 4,235 $

Non-cash contributions $ - $ -

See Notes to Financial Statements

-7-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE ] NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association's (the Association) mission is to
provide quality education, workforce development, advocacy, ethical standards and leadership for
addiction professionals. The Association empowers efforts in prevention, treatment and recovery. The
Association is supported primarily through private funding and public support.

Significant Accounting Policies
The financial statements of the Association,have been prepared in confonnity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to not-for-profits. The Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting
principles for not-for-profits. The more significant of the FASB's generally accepted accounting
principles applicable to the Association, and the Association's conformity with such principles, are
described below. These disclosures are an integral part of the Association's financial statements.

Basis of Presentatioii

The Organization maintains its accounting records on the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when the obligation is incurred. The Organization
reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets:
net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - These net assets generally result from revenues
generated by receiving contributions that have no doiior restrictions, providing services, and
receiving interest from operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-
related services, raising contributions, and performing administrative functions.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - These net assets result from gifts of cash and other assets
that are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, either
temporarily or permanently, until the donor restriction expires, that is until the stipulated time
restriction, ends or the purpose of the restriction is accomplished, the net assets arc restricted.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Association considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents, excluding amounts the use of
which is limited by Board designation or restriction. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Association
had no cash equivalents.

Revenue and Revenue Recoeriition

Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments under cost-reimbursable
contracts received in advance are deferred to the applicable period in which the related services are
performed, or expenditures are incurred, respectively. Contributions are recognized when cash or other
assets are received.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 1 NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED).

Donated Materials and Services

The Association records the value of donated goods and services when there is an objective basis
available to measure their value. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, in-kind
contributions were $4,235 and $1,550, respectively.

Equipment
Equipment is recorded at cost of purchase or, if contributed, at fair market value at the date of donation.
If donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded as net assets with
donor restriction support. In the absence of such stipulation, contributions of equipment are recorded as
net assets without donor restriction support. The Association depreciates equipment over a 5-7 year
useful life using the straight-line method. Depreciation expense was $5,266 and $5,124 for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. Equipment purchases with a cost under $500 are not capitalized.

Income Taxes

The Association has been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from federal income
taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Association is further classified as an
organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(3) of the Code. The most significant
tax positions of the Organization are its assertion that it is exempt from income taxes and its
determination of whether any amounts are subject to unrelated business tax (UBIT). The Organization
follows the guidance of Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Accounting for Income Taxes,
related to uncertain income taxes, which prescribes a threshold of more likely than not for recognition
and recognition of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. All significant tax
positions have been considered by management. It has been determined that it is more likely than not
that all tax positions would be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes has been recorded.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires managementto make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Comparative Financial Information:

The financial staterrients include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not
by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles! Accordingly, such information should be
read in conjunction with the Association's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020,
from which the summarized information was derived.

Financial Instruments:

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaid expense, prepaid
registrations, and accrued expenses are stated at carrying cost at December 31, 2021 and 2020, which
approximates fair value due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments.

-9-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 1 NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cost Allocation and Functional Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statements of activities and functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting ser\'ices benefited based on estimates that are based on
their relationship to those activities, consistently applied. Those expenses include payroll and payroll
related expenses and occupancy costs. Occupancy costs are allocated based on square footage. Payroll
and payroll related expenses are based on estimates of time and effort. Other cost allocations are based
on the relationship between the expenditure and the activities benefited.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). Under the new guidance, a
lessee will be required to recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more than
twelve months. Consistent with current GAAP, the recognition, measurement, and presentation of
expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee primarily will depend on its classification
as a finance or operating lease. However, unlike current GAAP—which requires only capital leases
to be recognized on the statement of financial position—the new ASU will require both types of
leases to be recognized on the statement of financial position. This standard is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021.

NOTE 2 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Association receives a substantial amount of its support from government agencies. A significant
reduction in the level of this support, if this were to occur, may have an effect on the Association's
programs and activities. Grants often require the fulfillment of certain conditions as set forth in the
instrument of the grant. Failure to fulfill the conditions could result in the return of funds to grantors.
Although the return of funds is a possibility, the board of directors deems the contingency unlikely,
since by accepting the grants and their terms, it has made a commitment to fulfill the provisions of the
grant.

Approximately 82% and 65% of total support was derived from a single grant from the State of New
Hampshire for years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 3 CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Association maintains cash balances in several accounts at a local bank. These accounts are insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At various times throughout the year, the
Association may have cash balances at the financial institution that exceeds the insured amount.
Management does not believe this concentration of cash results in a high level of risk for the
Association. At December 31, 2021 and 2020 the Association had no uninsured cash balances.

- 10-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 4 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair values of assets measured on a recurring basis at December 31 were as follows;

Other

Unobservable

, Inputs
2021 Fair Value Level (2)

Accounts receivable

2020

Accounts receivable S 83.461 S 83.461

The fair value of the accounts receivable are estimated at the present value of expected future cash
flows.

NOTES LEASE COMMITMENT

On December 19, 2013 the Association signed a lease agreement for office space in Concord, NH. The
term of the agreement is a six-year lease beginning March 1, 2014 and concluding on February 29, 2020.
An addendum to the lease was signed with a term of two years beginning March 1, 2020 and concluding
on February 28, 2022. Total rent related to this lease was $38,400 and $37,200 during the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The organization signed an additional 2-year amendment commencing March 1, 2022 and concluding
February 28, 2024; however, that amendment will terminate early on July 30, 2022. As a condition of the
early termination the association signed a 10-year lease for a larger office suite within the same building
in Concord, NH. The term of the 10-year lease agreement is June 1, 2022 through May 31, 2032.

Future minimum rental requirements for the years ended December 31 are:

2022 53,315

2023 52,140

2024 52,140

2025 52,920

2026 53,700
Thereafter 330.600

Total $ 594.815

NOTE 6 COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Employees of the Organization are entitled to paid vacation depending on job classification, length of
services and other factors. The statement of financial position' reflects accrued vacation earned, but
unpaid as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 in the amount of $4,298 and $5,834, respecti veiy.

-11 -
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020 ^

NOTE 7 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Association has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures,
liabilities and other obligations come due. The Association's primary sources of support are grants and
training fees. Most of that support is held for the purpose of supporting the Association's budget. The
Association had the following financial assets that could be readily made available within one year
to fund expenses without limitations:

2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents ' $ 152,434 $ 146,327
Accounts receivable 45,970 83,461

Less amounts subject to
donor imposed restriction (78.241) (20.610)

IK 120.163 $209.178

NOTES BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Association has net assets designated for various future projects and events. These funds are
comprised of the following as of December 31:

2021 2020

• Cash reserve account S 23.919 $ 15.362

NOTE 9 NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposed or periods at December 3

Subject to expenditure for specific purpose: 2021 2020

BRSS TACs Contract $3,758 $3,758
' Bank of NH Grant 2,935 3,750

JSl 8790 Contract 3,863 3,863

JSTCBPOOl Contract 15,724 -0-

JSIPNHOOI Contract 38,250 -0-

NH Problem Gambling 7,500 -0-

Dobles Foundation 5,745 7,426

Train it forward 466 1.813

Total net assets with donor restrictions $78.24! $20,610

NOTE 10 RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES-COVID-19

As a ,result of the spread of the COVID-19 coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen which may
negatively impact future financial performance. The potential impact of these uncertainties is unknown
and cannot be estimated at the present time.

- 12-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

- NOTE 11 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through May 23, 2022, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued to determine if any are of such significance to require
disclosure. It has been detennined that no subsequent events matching this criterion occurred during this
period.

NOTE 12 DEFERRED REVENUE

In 2021, NHADACA received registration fees for events in the following year. NHADACA had
unearned revenue of S14,095, and SO for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

- 13-
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NHADACA Board List December 2022

Member Board Position Business Address Email address Business Phone

Linda Brewer President

State of NH EAP

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

vacant
At Large

Representative

Christopher

Foster
Treasurer

Corporate Office

Amatus Health

10019 Reisterstown Rd #301

Owings Mills, MD 21117

Christine

McKenna
Secretary

GNCA/KeystoneHall

133 Epping Road, Unit B
Exeter, NH 03833

Alexandra

Hamel

Immediate Past

President

Easter Seals/Farnum Center.

140 Queen City Ave.,

Manchester, NH 03103

Matthew Lee
- Southern

Representative

Bonfire Behavioral Health

35 E Industrial Way, Suite 11

Rochester, NH 03867

Sarah Pepper
North Country

Representative

Children and Families

1016 US Route 5 Suite 2

St Johnsburv,VT 05819

• vacant
Seacoast

Representative -  •

Meredith

Senter

Central

Representative

Catholic Medical Center

8100 McGregor St.

Manchester, NH 03102

Elena VanZandt

Connecticut

Valley

Representative

HALO Educational Systems

44 Roberts Rd

Canaan, NH 03741

Tina Holmes
At Large

Representative

Gorham Family Resource Ctr

117 Main Street

Berlin, NH 03S70

Sara Dupont
At Large

Representative

635 Main Street, Suite 303

Laconia, NH 03246

Diane Fontneau President Elect

Seacoast Mental Health Ctr

1145 Sagamore Avenue

Portsmouth, NH 03801

vacant
Lakes Region

Representative

Amy Casey
Student

Representative

Plymouth State University

Student

Plymouth, NH 03264
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LICENSURE

EDUCATION

EXPERIENCE

DIANNE P. CASTRUCCI

Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor

Master of Education Degree. May 1993
Concentration: Counselor Education: Human Services

Bachelor of Science Degree. May 1989
Major: Elementary Education Minors: Psychology and Human Services
Plymouth State College, Plymouth, N.H.

Executive Director. NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association, Concord,
N.H. — June 2012 - Present

Promoted to Executive Director in June 2012, the Chief Executive Officer of
NHADACA reports to the Board of Directors, provides leadership and direction in
the development arid delivery of all activities and is responsible for the
organization's consistent achievement of its mission and financial objectives.
•  ensures the organizational operations and activities are provided in the highest

quality manner within the fiscal and human resource limitations of the
organization.

•  administers and manages all grants, contracts, and agreements and informs the
Board of Directors of these and other commitments that involve the utilization

of agency operational and financial resources and/or staff and volunteer time.
•  ensures the fiscal integrity and stability of the organization.
•  ' staffs the day-to-day operations of the organization providing leadership to staff

and volunteers to effectively carry out their assigned responsibilities.
•  serves as a spokesperson for the organization in public settings, consistent with

the mission, policies, and activities of the organization.

Training Institute Director. NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association/ NH
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders, Gilford, N.H. — Feb. 2004 - June 2012
Coordinates logistics of workforce development opportunities for substance abuse
prevention, intervention and treatment professionals throughout New Hampshire.
• consults with treatment and prevention professionals to identify specific training

topic needs and local or regional trainers with expertise on that topic.
• collaborates with co-sponsors for various events.

• contacts trainers, contracts their services and coordinates travel arrangements
• markets and advertises events by creating electronic/email flyers and printed

brochures and submits events for inclusion in training publications.
• maintains participant database including attendance, tuition and CE information.
• coordinates functions associated with presenting major conference and training

workshops of various sizes, and at various locations, statewide.

Board Administrator. NH Board of Licensing for Alcohol & Other Drug Use
Professionals, Concord, N.H. —^ September 2011 - March 2012
Write Board correspondence, create agenda for and keep minutes at Board meetings,
organize professional packets for review, maintain databases, arrange and order
testing, database auditing, other administrative functions as assigned by the
chairperson of the board. . (^
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Dianne Castrucci page 2

Master Licensed Substance Use Outpatient Counselor. Horizons Counseling Center,

Gilford, N.H. — January 2006 - May 2013
Provide substance abuse services related to evaluation and group treatment
to individuals in an outpatient setting and facilitate various psycho-educational
groups including Project ADAPT to be held at, and in coordination, with the
Belknap County Department of Corrections.

Exit Counselor. Community Alcohol Infonuation Program, inc., Boscawen, Nashua
and Laconia, N.H. — July 2003 - November 2005
Conduct exit interviews for clients at the completion of the CAIP, Impaired Driver
Intervention Program for DWI first offenders. Attended PRl training October 2003.
• diagnosed, and referred as appropriate, DWi first offenders for alcohol

dependence and/or alcohol abuse upon file review and structured exit interview.

Licensed Substance Use Outpatient Counselor. James Foster & Associates,

Manchester, N.H. — October 2003 - July 2004
Provide substance abuse services related to evaluation and brief treatment

of individuals in an outpatient setting.

Corrections Counselor/Case Manager. NH Department of Corrections, Lakes
Region Facility, Laconia, N.H. — December 1998 - February 2004
Providing clinical ser\'ices of inmates participating in a modified therapeutic
community treatment program (Summit House/Level 3 Substance Abuse Services).
• chaired and participated on, professional development committees to determine

staff training needs and involvement, VOITIS grant fund use, as well as planning
and coordination of multiple substance abuse training events for DOC staff.

•  supervised inmates in lectures, clinical groups, community meetings, clinical
staffing, individual counseling sessions and other clinical group activities.

• prepared/maintained clinical charts including evaluations, discharge summaries,
treatment transfer information for parole and aftercare recommendations.

•  impacted the direction/implementation and planning of treatment services
- available to inmates incarcerated at the Lakes Region Facility.

Antioch New England Adjunct Faculty. Summit House Program, Lakes Region

Facility, Laconia, N.H. — May 2000 - May 2002
Field super\'ise and train graduate interns from the Antioch Graduate School of New
England in methods and practice of substance abuse counseling.
•  interview, accept or deny, teach/train and super\'ise master's level Interns.

• communicate with professional seminar leaders.

Substance Use Counselor. N.H. Bureau of Substance Abuse Ser\'ices,

Multiple Offender Program, Laconia, N.H. — December 1993 - December 1998
Working as a clinical team member providing assessment, education and
intervention services to individuals convicted of multiple DWls.
• conducted intake/orientation, education, individual and group counseling,

evaluation and assessment services relevant to client's substance use, medical,
psychological, legal and social history.

•  represented the program at official hearings of the Dept. of Motor Vehicles.
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Dianne Castrucci page 3

Independent Contractor/Counselor. NH Department of Corrections, First Step

Program, Lakes Region Facility, Laconia, N.H. — July 1997 - September 1997
Facilitated the substance abuse/psycho-educational group component to NH State
Prison inmates participating in the First Step.Program. The course involved
providing 25-28 male inmates intervention services, 3 hours per week for 8 weeks.
• created curriculum including lesson outlines and client handouts.
• facilitated psycho-educational course on substance abuse related issues with

difTicult offender population.

Shelter Manager. Task Force Against Domestic and Sexual Violence,
Plymouth, N.H. February 1992 - December 1993
Completed 40-hour crisis training for Task Force volunteer crisis-line and was hired
as the Shelter Manager four months later.
• communicated with DCYS/DCYF on crisis-related issues.

•  supported women in crisis at Plymouth Area Court sessions.
• coordinated/managed building functions, including monitoring clients, intakes,

general maintenance, food pantry and emergency supplies.
•• presented training workshops on shelter regulations and procedures.

Editorial Assistant. Office of News Services, Plymouth State College,
Plymouth, N.H.— August 1989 - November 1993
Associated with this office for four years starting as Administrative Secretary then
promoted to Editorial Assistant.
• produced internal and external desktop publications.
• created weekly and monthly events calendars to market college events.
• wrote and distributed news releases concerning student success".
• hired and supervised student office assistants.
• created purchasing documents for supplies and ser\'ices.
• utilized and niaintained extensive computer databases.

•  submitted listings of college events to newspapers for publication.

OTHER

ACTIVITIES Legislative Commission on Primary Care Workforce Issues 2018-Present
NH Governor's Commission Treatment Task Force 2018-2022

NH LADC Board Peer Review Committee April 2013- March 2019
Associate Member of the Eleaming Guild October 2012-2014
Member of National Association of Forensics Counselors 2002-2012
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EMILY SOREY-BACKUS

EDUCATION

University of New Hampshire Graduate School
Master of Public Health

University of New Hampshire
Dual Major: Couiniuukatioii & Women's Studies
Minors: Psycholog\/ & Race, Culture, Poiuer

Regent's University
Study Abroad

EXPERIENCE

Manchester, New Hampshire

Durham, New Hampshire

London, United Kingdom

May 2020
CPA: 3.7

May 2015
CPA: 3.5

Spring 2014

New Hampshire Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association July 2021- Present
Training Director
•  Direct and support the general functions of the New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders
•  Organize and implement training events within contract budget guidelines
•  Contract reporting

•  Supervise, evaluate, and delegate tasks to training staff
•  Other duties as assigned

Southern New Hampshire Services Jan. 2019-June 2021

New Hampshire Works for Recovery Career Navigator
•  Helped to implement and assisted in the success of a grant project aimed at helping individuals affected by the

opioid crisis find sustainable, long-term employment
•  Assisted, guided, and counseled clients with various career-oriented tasks including career exploration, job

search, job training research, job search, resume and cover letter preparation, and interviewing skills
•  Guided clients through the process of applying for, managing the stresses of, and successfully completing

educational programs such as community college courses and other career preparation training
•  Adjusted to and successfully met grant deliverables despite unexpected changes due to the COVlD-19 pandemic

Riverbend Community Mental Health June 2015-Jan. 2019
Program Assistant II
•  Functioned as a Program Assistant for both the Community Support Program and the Integrated Center for

Health and demonstrated efficiency under pressure in fast-paced programs supporting clients with severe and
persistent mental illness

•  Completed various administrative tasks including answering and triaging calls, completing initial orientation
appointments, assisting with program admissions, verifying and discussing client insurance and fees,
maintaining accurate medical records, data entr)', and reconciliation research

•  Provided part-time support to both the Residential Program and the Medication Support Program

SKILLS

Computer applications including Microsoft,
Apple, and Google programs

Customer service

Cultural and racial awareness and sensitivity

Social media expertise

Strong understanding of intersectionalit)'
Strong communicator

Detail-oriented

Self-motivated

Basic health screening activities

Critical thinking

Strong writing and written communication

Experience with various case management
platforms
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Stephanie L Bean

SUMMARY: Adaptable office manager with 15 years of administrative experience. Has strong organization,

communication, attention to detail and leadership'skills. Seeking an Office Manager position within a

company that offers flexibility and the ability to grow both professional and personally.

EDUCATION: New Hampshire Community Technical College

Liberal.Arts, Business - May 2008

EXPERIENCE:

New Hampshire Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association, Concord, N H
Office Manager - beginning Jan 2023

Support the general functions of the New Hampshire Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association,

it's varied programs, the Executive Director and Board of Directors.

Manage the smooth running of day-to-day office operations ensuring organized office procedures,
maintained and current filing systems, reviewed/approved supply requisition's and properly assigned and
monitored correspondence and clerical functions

Along with Executive Director, supervise, evaluate and assign work to office'support staff and volunteers,
assisting when needed to complete tasks.

Conduct PayPal reconciliation, revenue reports, QuickBooks accounting processes, invoices and similar
accounts payable & receivable functions

Membership support including tracking regional rhembership, monthly communications and organizing

membership events/annual meeting

Coordinate NHADACA events, including programs for employees and bo.ard members to ensure
maximum efficiency

Occasional support functions for the Training Institute and Credentialing Partnership

Manage scholarship processes including award applications, notification, tracking, marketing, reporting and

distribution

Assist Executive Director with various reports for auditing purposes.

Assist with updating policies, manuals, succession plan, and other reports that may impact NHADACA policy.

Board and membership functions.

Other duties as assigned by the Executive Director and the Board of Directors of NHADACA

Administrative Assistant • Jan 2020- Dec 2022

Manage/Assist with membership related communication (letters/mailings, membership lists,

tracking of expiration dates, and related emails);

Assist with updating policies-,manuals, succession plan, and other reports that may impact NHADACA'

policy.

Support the general functions of the Executive Director and NHADACA as a whole

Perform administrative related activities such as answering phones, PayPal reconciliation,

memos, invoices and similar accounts payable & receivable functions, writing and maintaining

meeting minutes, general correspondence, tracking regional membership, maintaining

databases and some financial reporting. -

Occasional support functions needed to implement regularly scheduled training events such as

assisting with participant registration, cleaning, equipment and room set-up and clean-up.

Complete contract compliance reports as well as assist Executive Director with various reports

for auditing purposes.

Assist in the maintenance of websites, calendars and updating website documentation.
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AutoServofTilton, Tilton, NH

Business Development Center Representative - March 2017-July 2019

•  Answers all internet and phone inquiries for the dealership.

•  Sends email responses and photos.

•  Set appointments for customers to test drive.

• Works on a team
*

Brewster Academy, Wolfeboro, NH

Assistant to the CFO - Oct 2016 - March 2017

•  Assisted in all administrative duties for the business office including tuition and student debit accounts.

Servpro of Concord, Concord, NH
Office Manager-June 2012-Jur^e 2016

Used a range of office software; including email, customized scheduler, QuickBooks, spreadsheets and databases.

Process and manages payroll for the company weekly.

Manage jobs files from initial phone to final billing.

Develop and implemented new processes for inter office communication.

Manage and audit all files for specific insurance company protocols.

Maintain the overall condition of the office and organized meetings with staff.

Oversee the recruitment of new staff, including training and induction

Ensure adequate staff levels to cover for absences and peaks in workload, often by using third party agencies.

Delegate work to staff and managed their workload and output levels.

Promote continuing staff development and training.

Respond to customer enquiries and complaints.

Servpro of the Seacoast, Dover, NH

Assistant Project Manager - April 2008 - May 2012

\

Provided excellent organizational and time management skills.

Excelled in flexibility and adaptability to changing workloads.

Able to prioritize tasks and work under pressure.

Used to liaise well with others and delegate tasks.

Used strong oral and written communication with clients and coworkers.

Gave much attention to detail.

Maintained problem-solving skills and project management assists.

TECHNICAL SKILLS: Proficient in Microsoft Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Constant Contact, Survey Monkey and

QuickBooks
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Alyssa M. Demers

EDUCATION:

NHTI Concord Community College- Concord, NH 2007-2008

Information Technology- completed several courses

Lakes Region Community College-Laconia, NH 2011-2017

Associate's degrees in Human Services and Automotive Technology

Southern New Hampshire University- Manchester, NH 2017-2019

Bachelor's degree in Psychology with a concentration in Addiction Counseling

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

New Hampshire Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association, Concord, NH

Educational Support Specialist beginning 1/2023

• Work closely with Training Director to coordinate and implement trainings, identify training

needs, research potential trainers, and perform training related activities

•  Manage supplemental training contracts and subcontracts for the NH Training Institute on

Addictive Disorders

•  Assist with website and learning management system maintenance

•  Provide participant and presenter technical support ifor conferences and training
•  Lead support for agency networking technology

Training Coordinator 4/2022-12/2022

•  Schedule and contract with trainers to conduct trainings

•  Assist with website and learning management system maintenance

•  Provide participant and presenter support for conferences and training

•  Provided technical support for conferences and training
Training Associate 1/2019-4/2022

•  Completed work of a training coordinator from 1/2019-3/2019

•  Supported tasks for 500-person collaborative behavioral health conference

•  Aided in the transition from in-person trainings to virtual trainings

•  Expanded electronic webinar library

•  Provided onsite support to presenters and training participants

Training Assistant 12/2016-12/2018
• Maintain registration database and data entry

•  Coordinating, scheduling and posting webinars

•  Assist in maintaining the agency website

Student Office Assistant 9/2015-12/2016

•  Office support such as data entry, answering phones, filing and copying

•  Record registration fees received

Walmart, Concord, NH

Cashier 9/2013- 10/2017

•  .Processed merchandise returns and exchanges

•  Maintained a clean store

•  Received payments by cash, check, credit card, vouchers, or automatic debits

•  Provided excellent customer service



DocuSign Envelope ID: 98C02911-8AB6-4EE2-96FC-D9D629BCBBF7

Corissa Webb

•  Excellent oral and written

communications skills

•  Proficient in Microsoft Office

Suite

DESIRED POSITION / INDUSTRY

•  Understanding of design

principles and theories

•  Planning and organizational

skills

•  Strong interpersonal business

skills

•  Training and mentoring

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Arts in instructional Design January 2023

The University of Arizona Global Campus - Chandler, A2

Dean's List: Spring 2020, Fall 2020, Spring 2021, Fall 2021, Spring 2022, Fall 2022

Golden Key International Honor Society

EXPERIENCE

Instructional Design Specialist Beginning January 2023

Training Associate January 2022 - December 2022

Training Assistant October 2021 - December 2021

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association (NHADACA) - Concord, NH

•  Creates evaluations and summarizes data to prepare reports used in training review and decision-making.

•  Updates and maintains the website, as well as performs training related activities such as data entry, preparing

and sending invoices and accounts receivable.

•  Maintains NHADACA's webinar presence by working with presenters to record webinars by creating contracts,

recording the content, editing the videos, posting the webinars, monitors the webinars progress, and releasing

certificates to participants.

•  Maintains and establishes working relationships with other agencies and the general public.

Auto Claims Adjuster III December 2018-September 2021

United States Automobile Association - Phoenix, AZ

•  Developed leadership skills by mentoring and assisting in training new employees in how to adjust complex auto

claims. Created a simple needs analysis to determine where gaps in knowledge exist and developed a strategy to

bridge the gaps.

•  Adjusted low to moderately complex auto claims while adhering to compliance standards in each state.

Maintained an above-average quality metric (98%) on open file reviews and continuously received positive

member satisfaction feedback.

•  Acquired and applied a.deep knowledge of P&C insurance industry products, services, and processes with

minimal supervision. Communicated with members through phone, chat, and email.

•  Selected for several specialized projects to assist with business operations, including being a SME for the

Instructional Design team and assisted with optimizing e-learning lessons.

Customer Service Representative February 201S - January 2018

United Health Group - Hooksett, NH

•  Mentored and coached new employees on how to take calls and be efficient in their new role while providing

tips and best practices.
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•  Multitasked in a fast-paced environment using multiple software systems as well as kept focus on the.member,

determined and confirmed member eligibility and benefits.

•  Selected for specialized team to assist with backlog and escalated issues that could not be resolved on the first.

call.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

T-Ball Director December 2022 - Present

Goffstown Junior Baseball - Goffstown, NH

•  Serves as a member of the Board of Directors of the Goffstown Junior Baseball.

•  Assigns players to teams and coaches. Confirms birth records and player eligibility.

•  Answers questions from other board members, player parents, and coaches.

•  Assists with administrative roles for clinics, fundraising, and volunteer programs.
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Gloria Peters

EDUCATION

Saint Dominic's High School, Oyster Bay, New York 1960

WORK HISTORY

NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association 4/2014-Present
Training/Office Assistant
Responsibilities Include:
•  Support general functions of the NH Training Institute on Addictive Disorders
•  Performing multiple functions needed to implement regularly scheduled training events such as

preparing participant materials, participant registration and presenter support.
•  Summarize evaluations for quality assurance, track statistics/feedback & prepare reports.
•  Perform public relations duties such as attendance and representation at exhibit tables for

various workforce development events
•  Invoicing for training registration fees

•  Tracking payment of registration fees and invoicing participants/agencies for payment.
•  Support functions such as answering telephones, answering emails, cleaning, opening and

distributing mail.

NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association 5/2011 - 9/2011; 10/2012-12/2012
Administrative/Training Assistant
Responsibilities Include:
•  Performing multiple functions needed to implement regularly scheduled training events such as

preparing participant materials, participant registration and presenter support.
•  Summarize evaluations for quality assurance, track statistics/feedback & prepare reports.
• Marketing a clearinghouse of NH professional development resources.
•  Invoicing for training registration fees
• Tracking payment of registration fees and invoicing participants/agencies for payment.
•  Performing general administrative/clerical duties to include but not limited to: answering

telephones, answering emails, photocopying, faxing, mailing and filing.

Horizons Counseling Center 7/2012- 11/2012
Administrative Assistant

Responsibilities include:
•  Receptionist duties such as greeting clients and visitor, answering and directing phone calls,

data entry, word processing, photocopying, faxing, mailing and filing.
• QuickBooks data entry

Administrative Assistant and Bookkeeper 12/1996-1/2008
St. Joseph Church, Laconia, NH
Responsibilities include:
• Accounts payable and accounts receivable, payroll, bank reconciliations, financial reporting

and budget preparation

• Data entry, answering telephone, customer service,

•  Publish weekly church bulletin

•  Liturgy scheduling
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1 am a Sociology major interested in community health and development. I am
eager to work with people of all ages and develop skills to further my career In
health.

EDUCATION

Saint Michael's College, Colchester, VT

Graduating Senior 2023

Major; Sociology Minors: Public Health and Health Equity

GPA- 3.86

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE

Orientation Board, Saint Michael's College, Colchester, VT
October 2021- Present

Collaborated with Saint Michael's administration to organize and lead Orientation
Leader training for current Saint Michael's students as well as Orientation for first
year students.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Student Wellness Ambassador, Saint Michael's College,
Colchester, VT
September 2022-Present
Worked alongside wellness coach and nurse practitioners at Bergeron Wellness
Center to integrate a new initiative named BeWell. With a focus on mental, physical
and sexual health, I customized social media posts and posters to advertise the
new programs and events which were developed and organized as a team. Attended
open houses and campus events to advertise the new initiative to current and new
students, inform about health services provided on campus and encourage
wellness through mindful activities.

SKILLS

Time Management

Group FacQltation

Organization

Coaching and Tutoring

Problem Solving with Learning
Styles

Customer Service

CERTIFICATIONS

Peace Corp Certified

International Tutor Training
Program Certified

Writing Tutor, Writing Center at Saint Michael's College,
Colchester, VT
August 202i- Present
Coached students in writing and academic reading and assisted students in editing
academic papers. Collaborated with recurring clients on long-term papers and
assignments through the semester, as well as helped students for walk-in
appointments. Organized, filed and reported on student progress.

Landscaper/ Customer Service, Black Forest Nursery LLC,
Boscowen, NH
March 2020 - August 2022
Maintained greenhouse aesthetics, evaluated plant health, and acted accordingly
Assisted customers in buying desired plants, informed arid educated about plant
habitats and proper maintenance. Organized and categorized plant stocks on
nursery grounds.

Afterschool Program Counselor, ̂miage Kids EJRP, Essex
Junction, VT
September 2019 - February 2020
Supervised after school activities for cliildren aged 5-12. Facilitated and led indoor
and outdoor activities, including arts and crafts, sports and team building games.
Responded and resolved altercations between children and mentored children in
all mental, social and physical needs. "
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CONTRACTOR NAME

K.ev Personnel SPY 2024

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Dianne Castrucci Executive Director $91,073 70% $63,751

Emily Sorey-Backus Training Institute Director $64,272 95% $61,058

Stephanie Bean Office Manager $51,418 75% $38,564

Alyssa Demers Educational Support Specialist $51,632 95% $49,050

Corissa Webb Instructional Design Specialist $51,632 95% $49,050

vacant Fulltime Training Associate $41,600 90% $37,440

Gloria Peters Office/Training Assistant $9,920 85% $8,432

Jane Bradley Parttime Training Associate $24,960 95% $23,712

vacant Development Director $24,960 45% $11,232
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DiVmON FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

LoriA.W«Yfr UJ" PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 0330I0857
Nttrioi CoanlulQocr 603-17l'9544 I400452-3^4S Ext 9S44

Fax:603.271-4332 TDD Accm: 1400-73S-2964 www.6hha.eb.gov
KaOaSFn

Dirtctor

December 22, 2022

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council.

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Huntan Services. Dh/ision for Behavioral
Health, to enter into, an amendment to an existing contract with New Hampshire Alcohol and
Drug Abuse Couhselore Association, d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive
Disorders (VC#170428), Corkx)rd, NH to continue providing workforce development activities to
the Alcohol and Other Drug provider system and to add activities focused on stimulant use and
co-occurring mepta! health disorders, by exercising a contract renewal ̂ lon by increasirig the
price limitation by $325,000 from $1,137,731 to $1,462,731 and extending the completion date
from June 30. 2023 to June 30, 2024, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 44.80%
Federal Funds. 47.82% General Funds. 7.38% Other Funds (Governor's Office for Emergency
Relief and Rwyery).

The original contract Was approved by Governor and Council on August 26, 2020, (Item
#16), and April 21r 2021, (Iterti #16). and most recently amended on June 15, 2022, (Item
#35).

Funds are srvaiiablo In the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023 and anticipated
for State Fiscal Year 2024 .with the authority to adjust budget line Items within the price
limKation and.encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if ne^ed
and jiistrfied.

See attached fiscal di^lls

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing high-quality, competency and skills-
based professional development activities that address the rieeds of New Hampshire's Alcohol
and Other Drug Continuum of Care System workforce. This request adds Governor's Office for
Emergency Relief and Recovery (GOFERR) and American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding to
support expansion and enhancement of the Contractor's framework to increase training and
technical assistance. The scojae change Includes implementation of trainings on evidence-
based prevention, treatrneht recovery and harm reducUoh strategies for stirtiulant use disorder
and co-occurring health disorders. ^

Approximately 4.500 ihdlviduais will participate In professional developmenil aclivilles
through June 30,2024.

The Governor's "Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs multlsector Stimulant Work
Group recommends the heed for additional training for substance misuse continuurh of care
Workforce on evt^nce^iia^ .trealrhe^t approaches to Stipriulam uM disorder and co^pccurring
rhental health conditions v^th fidelity thatlnciude hSim reduction arid "prevention approaches,
^tegies.were identified as a result of New Harnpshire's rising etimulant use end a^odated

iO
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
ar>d the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

consequences. The additional funding will effectively support the Contractor's capacity to
develop, implement, and provide evidenced-based prevention, treatment and recovery support
trainings and other professior^l development activities to the state's substance misuse
continuum of care workforce.

The Department will continue monitoring services through the review of post-event
surveys, monthly progress reports arid annual site visits to ensure training events meet the
goals and objectives of the program.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions of the origtnal
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional
years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of servioes, available funding, agreement of the
parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department Is exercising its option to renew
servi^ for the remalnirtg one (1) year available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request there will be fewer
professional growth arvf leaming opportunities for New Hampshire's Alcohol and Other Drug
Prevention. Treatment and Recovery workforce; which may result in a decrease in knowledge,
skills, aptitude, experience amongst prevention, treatment, and recovery service providers.
The cortsequences of this include lower quality senrices and supports to individuats and families,
impacted by substance misuse, specifically StimUO and co-occurring conditions.

Area served: Statewide

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, additionia)
General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

The D^xuiment of Health and Human Serxnces'Hiuion it to join cemmuniliet and famiiiet
in providing opporiuniUtt for citietnt to achieve health and ind^ndenct..
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05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: OMSION FOR

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL^ GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds )

State Fiscal

Year

Class /
Account

Class Titie
|ob

Number
Current Budget

Incre^ed
(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2021 10'2-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 920S8501 5110,119 $0 $110,119

2022 102-500731 . Contracts for Prog Svc 92058501 $110,119 $0 $110,119

2023 . 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc .92058501 $110,000 $0 $110,000

• Subtotal i320.228 so S330,238

05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION

FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34%
General Funds)

State Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

•  \

Job

Number
Current Budget

increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731 • Contracts for Prog Svc 920S7S01 $105,831 SO $105,831

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 $105,831 SO 5105,831

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 5105,831 so 5105,831

•■2 Subtotal $317,493 $0 $317,493

05-95-92-920510-33950000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION
FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESS GRANT (100%

Federal Funds)

State Fiscal
Year

Class/
Account

Class Title
Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731
1

Contracts for Prog Svc 9205240? 525,000 SO $25,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal $25,000 $0 $2S,000



DocuSign Envelope ID; 98C02911-8AB6-4EE2-96FC-D9D629BCBBF7

I

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION

FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, NH STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100%
Federal Funds)

State Fiscal
Year .

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

1

2021 102-500731 • Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 515,000 SO 515.000

2021 1
'|

102-SD0731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057046 525,708 SO 525,708

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057046 599,292 50 599.292

1

2023 ' ■
I

102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057050 5175,000 SO 5175,000

Subtotal $315,000 "$0 $315,000

*

05-95-92^920510-19810000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION
FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. SABG ADDITIONAL (100% Federal Funds)

State Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2022 i 102-500731 Contraas for Prog Svc' 92059501 50 50 '  SO

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92059501 5150,000 SO 5150,000

1,

!' ,
Subtotal $150,000 ;  50 $150,000

05-9'5-94-940010-24A50000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS; NEW

HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL ARPA DHHS FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State Fiscal Year

1

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget
Inaeased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Budget '

2023 ■' 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc
OOFRF602PH

9527A ,
50 5137,500 -5137,500

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc
00FRF602PH

9527A ,
So 5187,500 5187.500
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1

Subtotal j SO $325,000 $325,000

1 ToUl 1 $1,137,731.00 $325,000 $1,462,731
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (AOD) Workforce contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("Stale" or "Department*') and
New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association, d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute
on Addictive Disorders ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 26, 2020, (Item #16), and April 21, 2021, (Item #16), and most recently amended on June 15,
2022, (Item #35) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of .certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and
approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2024

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

'$1,462,731
3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Ageiicy, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

4. Modify Exhibit 8, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work. Subsection 1.2., Paragraph
1.2.2, Subparagraph 1.2.2.3, to read:

1.2.2.3. In State Fiscal Year 2023 the Contractor must ensure:

1.2.2.3.1. A minimum of 83 live, professiorial development training events (trainings) with
in-person and virtual attendance options are offered, which include a minimum
of eight (8) trainings are offered in the northern region of New Hampshire (NH).

,  1.2.2.3.2. Training topics must be approved by the Department and include, but are not
'  limited to:

1.2.2.3.2.1. Skill building practice series.

1.2.2.3.2.2. Targeted training for:

1.2.2.3.2.2.1. Emerging issues.

1.2.2.3.2.2:2. Evidence-based prevention, treatment and recovery
strategies for stimulants use disorder (StimUD) and
co-occurring mental health disorders with adhesion to
harm reduction for youth ages 12 - 18, young

•  adulthood ages 18 - 25 and adults that include, but
are not lirhited to:

1.2.2.3.1.3.3.2.1. Contingency Management.

1.2.2.3.1.3.3.2.2; Community Reinforceme^os

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association
d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFP.2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01-A03 Page 1 of 5
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Approach.

1.2.2.3.1.3.3.2.3. Cognitive Behavioral Therapy.

1.2.2.3.1.3.3.2.4. Motivational Interviewing.

.  1.2.2.3.1.3.3.2.5. Exercise Therapy.

1.2.2.3.1.3.3.2.6. Mindfulness.

•1.2.2.3.2.2. Other identified evidence-based practice skills.

1.2.2.3.3. Trainings on Stimulant Use Disorder (StimUD) are selected in consultation with
people with lived experience with stimulant use.

1.2.2.3.4. A minimum of two (2) learning module trainings, one (1) on harm reduction for
stimulants use and one {1) learning module training as identified by vendor and
approved by Department.

5. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services. Section 1. Statement of Work, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph
1.2.2, by adding Subparagraph 1.2.2.4, to read:

1.2.2.4. In State Fiscal Year 2024, the Contractor must ensure;

1.2.2.4.1. A minimum of 20 live, trainings with in-person and virtual attendance options
are offered, which Include a minimum of one (1) training offered in the northern
region of NH.

1.2.2.4.2. Training topics must be approved by the Department and include but are not
limited to:

1.2.2.4.2.1. Skill building practice series.

1.2.2.4.2.2. Targeted training for:

1.2.2.4.2.2.1. Emerging issues.

1.2.2.4.2.2.2. Evidence-based prevention, treatment and
recovery strategies for StimUD and co-occurring
mental health disorders with adhesion to harm

reduction for youth ages 12 - 18. young
adulthood ages 18-25 and adults that include,
but are not limited to:

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.1. Contingency Management.

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.2. Community Reinforcement
.  Approach.

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.3. Cognitive Behavioral Therapy.

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.4. Motivational Interviewing.

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.5. Exercise Therapy.

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.6. Mindfulness.

1.2.2.4.2.3. Other identified evidence-based practice skills.

1.2.2.4.3. Trainings are approved by the Department and include topics as described In
Subparagraph 1.2.2.3.2. above.

1.2.2.4.4. Trainings on StimUD are selected in consultation with people with lived

DS

[l^New Hampshire Alcohol arvd Drug Abuse Counselors Associalidn
d/b/a-New Hampshire Training Inslilute on Addictive Disorders A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01-A03 P8ge2or5 Date
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experience with stimulant use.

1.2.2.4.5. A minimum of one (1) learning module training is offered.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1. Statement of Work, Subsection 1.2, by adding
Paragraph 1.26, to read:

1.26. The Contractor must participate collaborativeiy in Information Sharing Meetings.with the
Department's Training, Technical Assistance, and Evaluation contractors on a quarterly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

7. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1. to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 50.41% Federal Funds

1.1.1. Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant (SAPTBG), as awarded
on 10/1/19, by the Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA). Center for' Substance'
Abuse Treatment (CSAT), CFDA 93.959, FAIN TI083041.

1.1.2. NH State Opioid Response Grant (SOR), as awarded on 9/30/18, by SAMHSA,
CSAt, CFDA 93.788, FAIN TI081685.

1.1.3. NH Partnership for Success Initiative Grant (PFS2) as awarded on 9/30/15 by
SAMHSA, Center for Substance Abuse Prevention (CSAP), CFDA 93 243 FAIN
SP020796. . .

1.2. 7.78% General Funds.

1.3. 41.81% Other Funds {Governor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery).

8. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3. to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as specified
in Exhibit C-1, Amendment #1 Budget through Exhibit G-4. Amendment #3. SFY 2024 Budget.

9. Modify Exhibit C-3. Amendment #2 by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-3, Amendment #3,
SFY 2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit C-4, Amendment #3, SFY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

^  1/9

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association ^
d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials ^ "

RFP.2021.BDAS-05-TRAIN-01-A03 Page 3 of 5 Dale
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in .full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,
4

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

12/16/2022

Date

t

-DocuSigntd by:

■  ■

Name: S..fox
Title: Di rector

12/16/2022-

Date'

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors
Association, d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on
Addictive Disorders
'DecuSlgntd by:

>CJ«AtimCfltS492-■Name: "^Brewer

Title. President BOD

'New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Associalion
d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute* on Addictive Disorders A-S-1.2

RFP:2021 -BDAS-05-TRA1N-01-A03 Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having'been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

12/16/2022

^OocuSign«d by;

(3,

Date , . Namr'«°°y"
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date ' Name:

Title:

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association
d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders A-S-1.2

RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01 -AOa Page 5 of 5
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55^
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND KVMAN SERVICES

GOVEfWOR'S COSiMtSSlON ON ALCOHOL A OTHER DRUGS

Lori A SftWMitt PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03J01
CoomlMleotr 603-271-W64 l-8004044»»

Fii:60>27l-«103 TDD Atcui: ■•80O.7JM9^ W(vw.8bbi.nh.gev/dcbe«/bdai

June -1.2022

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to amend an existing
contract with New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Cournselors Association d/b/a New
Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders (VC#170428-B-001), Concord, New
Hampshire, to expand training, education and programming for the Alcohol and Other Drug
Continuum of Care wprldorce, by increasing the price limitation by $540,831 from $598,900 to
$1,137,731 and by extendifig the cbmpietion date from June 30, 2022 to June 30,2023, effective
upon Governof .ahd Council approval. 61.49% Federal Funds. 9.49% General Funds. 29.02%
Other Funds (Governor's Cornmission).

The original contract was approved by Governor end Council on August 26. 2020. Item
#16 and most recently amended with Governor and Couricll approval on April 21,2021. item #16.

Funds are available In the following accounts for Stale Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to'adjust budget line Items within the price limiiatloh and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if rieeded and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide additional high-quality competency and skills-
based trainings and other professional .development activities that address the needs of the
state's substance misuse continuum of care workforce by strengthening and enhancing trainings
that reflect advances In prevention, treatment and recovery science including, but not limited to
harm reduction strategies, contingency management, trauma-informed care, secondary exposure
to trauma for front line.workers, data driven decision making, and the impact of COVID-19 on
behavioral health. As of May 2022, the .vendor conducted 33 trainings across the continuum of
care In post training surveys, 93% of participants indicated they were highly satisfied with the
trainings. Due In part to this rate of satisfaction. On March 4. 2022, the Governor's Commission

'oh Alcohol and Other Drugs'voted lo'continue funding this program for SFY '23. '
As referenced In Exhibit A, Revisions to the Standard Contract Provisions of the original

agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval, the Department Is exercising Its option to renew services for one
(1) of the two (2) years available.

Deporlmtnl cf HtoUh orui Human Struiett'Mitiion U to join communUit$ and/omUiu
in providing opporluniiiet for ciUunt to achitve ktalth and indtpcndente.
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His Excofiency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
' end the Honorable CouncO

Page 2 of 2

Nw Hampshire lacks the workforce capacity to provide the substartce misuse prevention,
early-intervention, treatment, recovery support and other continuum of care services necessary.

• to meet the growing need for these services. Multiple factors, including high tumover rates, vrorker
. shortages, an aging workforce, inadequate compensation, and stigma have created a workforce
crisis in the field which has only become more acute since the COVID-19 pandemic began. The
continued Improvement and (ransformatlon of the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care
system and integration with primary and mental healthcare depend entirely on a workforce that is
adequate in size, as well as trained and supported, to meet the needs of substance misuse end
other behavioral health needs of the citizens of New Hampshire.

The Departrhent will monitor services using post-event surveys, monthly progress reports
and annual site visits. Performance Measures include;

•  In SFY2d, the Contractor will provide a minimum 75 trainings to providers across the
continuum of care;

•  90% of participants surveyed will 'Strongly Agree' that the training met' the learning
objectives;

•  90% of participants surveyed will Strongly Agree that as a result of partidpating In the
training will apply the knowledge learned In their personal or profession life.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer
professional growth end learning opportunities for the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care
system workforce in the state, which may result in a decrease in prevention, treatment and
recovery providers' knowledge, skills and aptitude to apply advances in eddiction sdence. The
consequences of this include lower quality services and supports to individuals and families
impacted by substance misuse. Which can lead to substandard care and progression of
behavioral health conditions.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number # 93.243 FAIN SP020796,
Assistance Listing Number #93.788 FAIN 11081685, Assistance Listing Number #93.959 FAIN
TI083041, TI084659 and TI083955

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
request^ to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibirlette

Commissioner
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05-95-92-920510-3M20000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION
FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Othor

Funds)

State FIscol

Year

Class!

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increasod

(Decreased)
Amount -

Revised Budget

2021 102-S00731 Cootraeit for Pro| Svc 92osasoi SU'0,119 SO $110,119

2022 102 500731 Ceniracu lot Prof Svc 920S8S01 $110,119 ' SO $110,119

2023 ' 102-500731 ConlracU for Pro| Svc 920S8S01 SO S 1)0,000 SllO.OOO

. Subtotal $220,238 $110,000 $330,238

05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS; DIVISION
FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 54%

General Funds)

State Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Titio

Job

Number
CurrontBudgot

Increased

(Docroasod)
Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731 Conuacis for Pro| Svc 920S7S01 SlOS.831 SO 5105,831

2022 102-500731 ConuactiforProf Svc 920S7S01 S10S,831 SO 5105.631

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 920S7SO! so $105,831 5105,831

5v5roro/ $211,682 $m.831 $312,493

05.95-92-920510-33950000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION
FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESS GRANT (100%

Federal Funds) «

Stato FIscol

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
. Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731 ,  Contracts for Prog Svc 920S2407 S2S,000 SO 525,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 920S2407 SO SO SO

Subrotof $25,000 $0 $25,000
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05-95-92.920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION

FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, NH STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100%
Fodoral Funds)

.State Fiscal
Year

Class /

Account
Class TItIo

Job

Number
Current Budget

Incroasod .

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-S00731 Contrjcii lor Prog Svc 920S7040 515.000 50 515,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts lot Prog Svc 92057046 525.708 50 525.708

2022 102-500731 Contracts lor Prog Svc 92057046 599.292 50 $99,292

2023 102-50073) Contracts lor Prog Svc 92057050 50 5175,000 5175.000

. SuMolaf $140,000 SlfS.OCO 5315,000

OS-9S-92-920510-19810000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS; DIVISION
FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SABG ADDITIONAL (100% Federal Funds)

State Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class TItIo

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Occroasod)
Amount

Revised Budget

2022 .102-500731 Contracts lor Prog Svc 92059501 SO SO SO

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92059501 SO 5150,000 5150,000

SuMofa/ 50 SiSO.OOO 5150,000

Subrolsl SS96,9dO $540.9)1 $1.1)7.7)1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment P2

This Amendment to the Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce contract is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor Association d/b/a New
Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on August 26,2020. (Item f#16).'as amended on April 21.2021, (Item #16). the Contractor
agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract
and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 17 the Contract may be
amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive ■
Council; and

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation,
or modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

■1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.4, Completion Dale, to read:
130 Pembroke Road, Suite 150. Concord. NH 03301-3857

2. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 17. Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2023

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.6, Price Limitation, to read:
$1,137,731.

4. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.2.,
Paragraph 1.2.2., to read:

1.2.2. Planning, coordinating and providing training opportunities; both In-person and
through eLearning platforms: which cover core, intermediate, and advanced levels of
instruction; are approved by the Department; and include, but are not limited to:

1.2.2.1. In state fiscal year 2021:

1.2.2.1.1. . A minimum of 64 live, professional development training events
with In-person and virtual attendance options, including, but not
limited to skill building practice series, and targeted training for
emerging issues, with at least six (6) being offered in the northern
regions of NH.

1.2.2.1.2. A minimum of five (5) new, on-demand webinars, added to the
existing library of weblnars.

1.2.2.1.3. A minimum of four (4) kinship family trainings.
1.2.2.1.4. A minimum of six (6) Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

trainings, as detailed in Subsection 1.3.

New Hampshire Alcohol end Drug Abuse '
Counsetof Association d/Wa New Hampshire .
Treining Institute on Addictive Disorders Coniroctor Initials ^^2^/2022
RFP.2021 -BDAS-05.TRaIn-01 .A02 Page 1 of 5 Dale ^
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1.2.2.2. In State Fiscal Year 2022:

1.2.2.2.1. A minimum of 75 live, professional development training events
^with in-person and virtual attendance options including, but not
limited to skill building practice series and targeted training for
emerging issues, with at least six (6) being offered in the northern
regions of NH.

1.2.2.2.2. A rninimum of five (5) new. on-demand webinars. added to the
existing library of weblnars.

1.2.2.2.3. A minimum of eight (8)1 Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
trainings, as detailed in Subsection 1.3.

1:2.2.3. In State Fiscal Year 2023:

1.2.2.3.1. 1.2.2.2.1. A minimum of 75 live, professional development training
" events with in-person and virtual attendance optioris, that include,
but are not limited to skill building practice series and targeted
training for emerging issues, with at least six (6) events being
offered in the northern regions of New Hampshire.

5. Modify Exhibit 8, Scope of Services. Section 1. Statement of Work, by adding Subsection
1.24., to read:

1.24. The Contractor's Training Director shall participate in meetings with the
Department on a rhonthly basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department,
to ensure compliance with the contractual requirements.

6. Modify Exhibit 8, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, by adding Subsection
1.25., to read:

1.25. The Contractor shall participate In meetings with the Department on a quarterly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department, to ensure compliance with
the contractual requirements.

7. Modify Exhibit 0. Payment Terms, Section 3., to read".

3.. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item, as specified in Exhibit C-1. Amendment Budget through Exhibit C-
3. Amendment #2 Budget.

8. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms. Section 4., to read;

4. The Contractor shall submit an.invoice and supporting documents to the.
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following
month. The Contractor shall:

4.1. Ensure the invoice is presented in a form that Is provided by the
Department or is otherwise acceptable to the Department.

4.2. Ensure the invoice identifies and requests payment for allowable costs
Incurred in the previous month.

4.3. Reserved.

4.4. Ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department
New Hampshire Alcohol end Drug Abuse \ i ^
Counsclof Associallon dft>/a New Hampshiro L ̂
Treinir>g Inslitute on A<Wicllve Disorders Contractor Initials > ■ ■

RFP-2O21-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01.A02 Page2of5 Date
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with the supporting documentation for authorized expenses, in order to
initiate payment.

4.5. Provide supporting documentation of allowable costs that may include,
but is not lirnited to: '

4.5.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

4.5.2. Receipts for purchases and other proof of expenditures, as
applicable.

4.5.3. Tirriesheets and/or time cards signed by both employee and
supervisor that support the hours employees worked for wages
reported under this contract.

4.5.3.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(1X1) Charges to Federal
awards for salaries and wages must be based on
records that accurately reflect the work
performed.

4.5.3.2. Per 2 CFR 200.430 (iii) Labor records must
. reasonably reflect the total activity for which each
employee is compensated, showing percentages
for time spent on activities under this contract and
all other activities (totaling no more than 100%).

4.6. The following back up documentation may also be requrested as needed:

4.6.1. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

4.6.1.1. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally
unallowable unless they are an integral part of a
conference grant or specifically stated as an
allowable expense in the FOA. Grant funds may
be used for light snacks, not to exceed $3.00
per person for clients.

4.6.1.2. Cost center reports, submitted only as
requested by the Department.

4.6.1.3. Profit and loss report, submitted only as ■
requested by the Department.

9. Add Exhibit C-3, Amendment #2. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

—PS

New Hampshire Alcohol end,(>U9 Abuse I I
Counselor Associaiion drb/a New Hampshire I U ̂
Training Instilulo on Addiclive Disorders Conlractor Inliials ^ ■ ■■

RFP-2021 -BOAS-OS-TRAlN-01 -A02 Page 3 ol 5 Date S/2S/2022
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by (his Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written.below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/25/2022

Date

^—OQtuVoM4trf:

S. ftf)'

Name:*<a^)a s. fox

Title: Director

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
.Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders

5/25/2022

Date

by.

—

CUMlOlOpeUO-psua

Name: Brewer

president bod

New Hampshire Alcohol ond Drug Abuse
Counsetof Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Inslilulo on Addictive Disorders Amendment 02

RFP.2021-BDASO5-TRAIN-0t-A02 Pago 4 of 5
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/

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office. Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

.  OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OMuSloMd ky:

S/2S/2022 ^

Date Name:«®^y" cuarino
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (dale of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

New Hampshire Alcohol and I>6g Abuse
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Treinlng Irtttitulo on Addictive Disorders Amendmenl HZ

RFP.2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-0t-A02 Pago 5 of 5
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Exhibit C*3, Amendment #2

Budget
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION ON ALCOHOL A OTHER DRUGS

Lorl A SblWoetu 1^9 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
CocDobiJoatr 603.271^564 1.80^804.0909

F«i: 603-271.6105 TDDAcccsi: l40O>735-2964 Mnrw.dblu.nb.gov/Ocb<«/bda»

April 7. 2021 i

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
on behatf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to enter into a Sole Source
amendment to an existing contract with New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor
Association d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders (VC#170426-6001},
Concord. New Hampshire for training, education and programming for the Alcohol and Other Drug
Continuum of Care workforce, by increasing the price limitation by $135,000 from $461,900 to
S596.900 wiilh no change to the contract completion date of June 30. 2022 effective upon
Governor and Council approval. 51.05% Federal Funds. 12.05% General Funds. 36.90% Other
Funds (Governor Commission).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on August 26, 2020. item
#16.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future oparating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state nscat years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the price limitation is increasing by more than 10%
of the original contract amount with no change to the contract completion date. The additional
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration State Oploid Response grant
funding was not awarded to the Department in time to neither include the additional grant funding
in the original contract, nor competitively procure; The, additional education and training
components in the amendment are being added to services that the Contractor Is currently
providing.

The purpose of this request Is to provide additional high-quality competency and skills-
based professional development activities that address the needs of the State's Alcohol and Other
Drug Continuum of Care system workforce.

New Hampshire lacks the workforce capacity to provide needed Alcohol and Other Drug
Continuum of Care system workforce prevention: early-intervention; treatment; and recovery
support services to meet the growing need for services. High turnover rates;, worker shortages;

77i« Dtporimtni of Htolih end Human Servicti'Miuion utojoincemmunilit$ond/omUiet
'in pnoidinfoppertunilie$ for cUutnt to echitvt htoUh and indtptndtntt.
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His ExcaOency, Governor Chrtstopher T. Sununu
end the Honorebte Coundl

P89e2of2

an aging workforce; Inadequate compensation; and stigma have created a workforce crisis in the
field. The continued improvement and transformation of the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum
of Care system and Integration with prima/v and behavioral healthcare depend entirely on a
workforce that is adequate fn size, as well as trained and supported, to meet the needs of
individuals who seek substance use disorder treatment services.

The Contractor provides training to the Partnership for Success workforce, which includes
Student Assistance and Substance Misuse Prevention professionals. The Contractor also
provides the scholarships to national training events for the Partnership for Success workforce.
The Contractor will also be conducting a tvro (2)-day virtual symposium on State Opiold Response
grant-related topics at no cost to all registrants.

The Department will monitor contracted services using post-event sun/eys and monthly
progress reports.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions of the original
contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is not exercising its option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, vital high-quality training
events will not occur, leaving an already under capacity and compromised workforce with fewer
opportunities for growth and learning. The missed opportunHies would be detrimental to the
delivery of services and supports to Individuals and families impacted by substance misuse.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA # 93,243 FAIN SP020796 and CFDA (!#93.768 FAIN TI081685

In the event lhat the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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06-95-92-920510*33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. HNS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL. GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Olher Funds

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account'
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Conlracts for

Prog Svc
92058501

$110,119 $0 $110,119

2022 102-5'00731
Conlracts for

Prog Svc
92058501

$110,119 $0 $110,119

Subtotal $220,238 $0 $220,238

05-95.92.920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057501

$105,831 $0 $105,831

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057501

.  $105,831 $0 $105,831

Subtotal $211,662 $0 $211,662

05-95-92-920510-33950000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESS GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92052407

$15,000 $10,000 $25,000

2022. 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92052407

$0 $0 $0

Subtotal $75,000 $70,000 $25,000
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05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, NH STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057040

$15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057046

$0 $25,708 $25,708

2022 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svc 92057046

$0 $99,292 $99,292

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc 92057048
$0 $0 $0

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD

$0 $0 $0

Subtotal $15,000 $125,000 $140,000

Total $461,900 $135,000 $596,900
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Training for. Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor. Association d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute
on Addictive Disorders ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 26. 2020, (Item #16), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17 the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. Genera! Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$596,900. .

2. Modify Exhibit 8. Scope of Services. Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.2.. Paragraph
1.2.2., Subparagraph 1.2.2.1.. Part 1.2.2.1.1., to read:.

1.2.2.1.1. - A minimum of 64 live, professional development training events with in-person and
virtual attendance options, that include, but are not limited to skill building practice
series and targeted training for emerging issues, with at least six (6) events being
offered in the northern regions of NH.

3. Modify Exhibit 8, Scope of Services. Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph
1.2.2, Subparagraph 1,2.2.2., Part 1.2.2.2.1., to read:

1.2.2.2.1. A minimum of 59 live, professional development training events with in-person and
virtual attendance options, that include, but are not limited to skill building praclice
series arid targeted training for emerging Issues, with at least six (6) events being
offered in the northern regions of NH.

4. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.15., to read:

1.15. The Contractor shall administer a process to award scholarships through Septernber
30. 2021, to individuals for whom cost to attend SOR-funded trainings and/or SOR-
related training events is a barrier; ensuring final determination of awards are approved
by the Department.

6. Modify Exhibit 8. Scope of Services, Section 1. Statement of Work by adding Subsection 1.23 to
read:

1.23. The Contractor shall conduct a two-day virtual symposium for up to 350 participants.
The Contractor shall:

1.23.1. Ensure each day of the virtual symposium has a duration of afleast three (3)
hours;

1.23.2. Collaborate with the Department to determine training topics.

1.23.3. Collaborate with the Department to identify and obtain qualified presenters for

Nevy Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse ->
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive'Disorders Contractor Initials

RFP.2021.BOAS-05.TRAIN^1.A01 Page 1 of 4 Date
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both days.

1.23.4 Market the two-day'symposium.

1.23.5. Manage session content.

1.23.6. Provide all logistics for the event.

1.23.7. Ensure the event is available at no cost to all registrants.

1.23.8. Ensure the event takes place before September 30, 2021.

6. Modify Exhibit C. Payment'Terms. Section 3.. to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibits C-l, Amendment #1 Budget through Exhibit C-2. Amendment #1
Budget.

3.1 Payment for Partnership for Success grant activities referenced in Exhibit B, Scope
of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Paragraph 1.1.2. shall be on a cost
reimbursement basis for allowable activities through June 30, 2021.

3.2. Payment for NH State Opioid Response grant activities referenced in Exhibit 8.
Scope of Services. Section 1. Statement of Work. Paragraph 1.1.3. shall be on a
cost reimbursement basis for allowable activities through September 29, 2021.

7. Modify Exhibit C-1. Budget by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-1. Amendment #1 Budget,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein..

8. Modify Exhibit C-2, Budget by replacing It in its entirety with Exhibit C-2. Amendment ffl Budget,
which is attached"hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on AddicOvo Disorders Contractor Initials

RFP-2021 -BOAS-OS-TRAIN-OI-AOI Page 2 of 4 Date

Pi
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendrhent shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/7/2021

Date

Title:
Di rector

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorderis

4/7/2021

Dale

bin

I
■AcsrmmDBTaTr

Name: Linoa ercwer
Title. president bod

New Hampshire Alcohol orxt Drug Abuse
Counselor Assodalion d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders Amendment 01

RFP-202t-fiOAS-05-TRAIN-0VA01 Page 3of4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

4/8/2021

Date Nam^'?a?fi'eVi'ne''"Pi nos
Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

New Hampshire AJcoho) and Drug Abuse '
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Treinirig Institute on Addictive Disorders Amendment U1
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Exhibit C-1, Amendment#!

Budget
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Exhibit C-2 Amendment #2

Budget
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

bimiONFOR BEHAyiORAL HEALTH

PLCASA.fr STREET, CONCORD. NH OJJOl

M>.ni.P544 «-<PO>8S}:3H9EitPS44
Pei; 603-271-4332 TDD Atcm: l-BOO-735-2964 inn».dhhi.nA.|ov

August 5. 2020

His ExcBllency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorebfe Council

SteteHouse

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Deparlmer^t of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health, on
behalf of the Governor'e Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to enter into a contract with
New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association d/b/a New Hampshire Training
Institute on Addictive Disorders (VCftlBO). Concord. New Hampshire in the amount of $461,900
for the provision of a high-quality competency and skills-based training program wilh the option
to renew for up to two (2) additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through
June 30. 2022. 36.74% Federal Funds. 15.58% General Funds, and 47.68% Other Funds
(Governors Commission Funds).

05-95-92.920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL. GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058501 $110,119

2022 ■ 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Syc 92058501 SltO.119

SubtotQi $220,238

05-95-92.920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 $105,831

2022 102-500731 • Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 $105,831

Subtotal $2ff.662

77i* OtperUntM ofHtollh enti Humgii Struita' Miuion u it Join communitUt and/amiliu
in pm/idingoppoflunilitl (or <itis/n$ lo oehitot ond indtptndtnn.
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PegeSofS

OB-96-92-920510-33960000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF ..DRUG AND
ALCOHOL. PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESS GRANT <100% Federal Funds)

State Fiscal
Yeor

.Class/Account Class Title Job Number
Total

Amount

2021 102-500731 Coolracls for Prog Svc 92052407 SI 5.000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 SO

Subtotal SiS.OOO

06-95-92-920510'70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTN. BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL. NH STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Claes Title Job Numt>er

Total

Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog .Svc 92057040 $15,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 920570040 $0

r
Subfofo/ 515,000

.
Tptal $461,900

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide d high-quality competency and skiils-based training
program that addresses tho needs of the State's prevention, early-intervention, treatment, and
recovery supports v^orkforce. The Contractor will deliver high quality training to improve the ability
of Alcohol and Other Drug supports and service providers to provide quality, outcome-supporled
services to individuals and families.

New Hampshire lacks the worktorce capacity to provide needed Alcohol and Other Drug
prevention. early-Intervention, treatment, and recovery support services to meet the growing need
for services. High turnover rates, worker shortages, on aging workforce, Inadequate
compensation..and stigma have created a workforce crisis in the field.

The continued improvement and transformation of (he Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care
system and integration with primary and behavioral healthcare depend entirely on a workforce
that is adequate in size, as well as .trained and supported, to meet (ho needs of individuals who
seek substance use disorder (reatrrienl services. Additionally, the necessary knovytedge base for
providing Alcohol end Other Drug services has increased dramatically over the past several yeara.

In 2019. the NH Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs. In partnership with service
providers and other key stakeholders, Identified data-driven prioriiios to comprehensively address
New Hampshire's addiction crisis. The three (3)-year plan provides a framework to move New
Hampshire forward in a direction that creates an outcomes-based approach that continues to
build on well-coordinated efforts across the Continuum of Care Syslem.
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The Department will monitor conlracted eervices through regularly scheduled meetings, the
submission and review of monthly program reports and by using the following performance
measures:

•  The Contractor will collect a completed evaluation sheel from no less than 85% of
pdrticipanis who attend a training even!.

•  The Department will monitor performance of the contract by trainee setisfaction survey
results thel reflect an 85% or higher rating of trainee satisfaction through evaluation
results submitted.

The Department selected the Contractor through a.compelitive bid process using a Request for
Proposals (RFP) that wes posted on the Department's website from 5/26/2020 through 6/24/2020.
The Department received two (2) responses thai were reviewed and scored by a learn of qualified
individuals. The Scoring Sheel Is attached.

/^s referenced In Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions. Section 1. Revisions to
Form P.37. General Provisions. Subsection 1.1. of the attached contract, the parties have the
option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, conlingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council
approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request. New Hampshire's Alcohol
and Other Drug workforce may be unaware ol the most current and efficacious informetion and
research on support eervices and treatment for substance use disorders. The result could ieed
to the provision of substandard Ireatmerrt for people with alcohol and other drug issues and may
result in a workforce thai is unable to fulfil ccnilnuing education aedlis needed to meet, complete
and sustain licensure and certification requirements.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFpA#93.859/FAIN#TI083041. CFDA <f93.788/FAIN 11081685. and
CFOA e3.243/FAIN SP0207^

In the event thai the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available. Genera! Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Res^ctfuliyrSubmitted.

Lori A. Shiblnette
Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health ar^d Human Services

Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Training for Alcohol and Other Drug
(AOD) Workforce

RFP Nimo

Bidder Name

1.
Altarum

2.
NHAOACA

3.

5.

6.

7.

RFP-2021-BDAS<05-TRA1N

RFP Numftor Reviewer Names

1.
Heidi Young. Prgrm. Planning end
Review Spec.

Paai/FatI

Maximum

Polnta

Actual

Points

330 2se

390 328

3S0 0

330 0

390 0

390. 0

390 0

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

OnviaAhhar. Program Assl I

. Linda Parker. Clinical Services

PfgnTv$pec.(V

Shannon Ouinn. Program Spec.lV

Laurie Heath. Busn. Admin III
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FORM NUMBER M7(*<r«lon I2/I(/)6I»

SubJeci:_Training for Alcohol end Olhc< Drug (AOD) Workforce {RfP-202l-BDAS-0S-TRAfN-0n

Hoticc: Thit »|ftenxm and all of lu •iiichtncni.t ihiU b«come public upon lubmiuion lo Governor «nd
Exccull«t Council for tpprov^l. Any inrarmilioii thit is prtvaie, coofi^cniiil or propricitry musl
be clearly Mcmiritd lo the 'gency ind agreed (o m tt>riiin| prior 10 nsning ibc coniracL

ACMF.EWC.NT

The Suie or Hew Hampthirr and ihc Comricior hereby mutually tprre at rollowi:

CCNERAL PROVISIONS

I.I State Agency Name

New Hirrpahire Dcparimcni of HeiltHand Honun Servicei

1.2 State Agency A44rcts

ilbrieitani Street'
Cervrard.NH 0))0l-3l}7

1.] Coniractor Name

J^cwJfftmpsbiie Alcobot &nd Drug Abuse CounKlors
Auociaiion d/b/a New Hampshire Training Insiituie
on Addictive Disorders

1.4 Contnciur AtSdrcti

130 Pembroke Road, Suite JOO
Concord, NH 03301

r

l.S CortuaeiocPhone
Numbt/

(603)225.7060

1.6 Account Number

05-095-092-920510-3382

IISO95 092.92O.5I0-3386

O5.O95-O92-92O5I0-3395

05-095-092-920510-7040

1.7 Completion Date \

June 30. 2022

1.8 Price limitaiiort

$461,900

1.9 Coiuiiciing OfTicer for State Agency

Natban D. White,"Diievtpr

I.IO Sute Agency Telephone Number

(603) 27(.96)1

l.ll Conlnctor Sigrulurc :

fXuJ

1.12 Name and Title of ContrxtetSignatof*

I.IJ Sutc Agertcy Sigruiurv y .

Datc:/7^;5£)
1.14 Name and Title of Sute AgctKy Signatory

1.1.< Appri.vil by Ihe N.H. Drpanment A(iiiiinitirot>nr>. Oivi»>on of Pmm-.ncl (\(o/v'k-oA/p;,

Bv: Oirccior. On"
)  . .

1.16 Approval by ihc Atiornvy Ccr<f»l{V'or«n. Sttbiumcc and FuecuiimO OfftjipUtnhlt)

00/10/20

1.17 Approval by ihcGovcnv.r jn6 F.r.cculive O.unvil Of l

O&C hem number "OAC Meeting Uaic:

rngc 1 of 5
Conuaciof Iniiials - .

Dale 57^^
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Sieie of New
Hampshire, ociing through ihe egencj ideniined In block 1.1
(-Stale"), engogci conirecior idemificd in block i.J
("Coniiaciof") to perform, and the Contractor shall perfonn. the
work Of ulc of goods, or both, Identined and more paniculirl)'.
dcKribed in the aliithed EXHIBIT B which is incorporiieJ
herein by reference ("Scrvicei")..

1. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
conoary. and subject to the apptovat of the Covcmor and
Executive Cooncil of the State of New Hampshire, if appllcoble,
this Agreement, and all obligaiiow of the parties hcrconder. shall
become effective oo' the dale the Governor end Executive
Council approve this Agrecmeni as indicated in block I.I?,
unless no such approval is regulred, in which cose the Agreement
ihall becorrw cfTeciivc on the due the Agreement is signed by
the Stale Agency as shown in block 1.1) ("EITectivc Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Dale, all Scrvicci pcrfonmcd by the Coni/ocior prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contfoctor. and in the event thai this Agreement doct.not.bccome_
efTcciive. th^ ^tatc shall have noJiabHity to the Coniraeior,
including wiiKoul limitation, any obligation .10 pay the
Contractor for any costs incvncd or Services performed.
Contractor roust compieie all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
• NotwiiKttandicsg any provision of this Agreement to tht
contrary, all gbligoiion.s of the State hercui\der. including,
without' limitation, the continuance of payments herconder. arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation Of availability of funding for this Agreement arid
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B. in wliole or in
part. In no event shall she State be liable for any payments
hcrcundcr in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such ftmds
become available; if ever, and shall hove ihc right to reduce or
terminate (he Services under this Ag/eemeni immediotcly upon
giving the Contractor f\oiiec of such reduction or (erminaiioo,
The State shall not be required to irarufer f«r»dj from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PBICET'RICF. limitation/
PaVMENT.

y I The contract price, method of payment, and tcrnn ofpaymem
are idcr^iificd and rwore particularly described In EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Slate of the contract price shall be the.
only arid the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expense*, of whatever nature ineuncd by the Contractor in the
performance hertof. ond shall be the only and the complete

contpensation to ihc Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liahlliiy to the Controctor other thin (he eonlraci price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts'
Otherwise payable to lite Conitacior under this Agreement those
liquidated amount* required or permitted by N.H. RSA €0:7
through RSA 80:7 c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Norvfithstanding any provlsiors in this Agrccmcnl to the
ceiniary. and norwithstanding unexpected circurruisnces. In no
event shall Ihe loiat of aJI paymenu aulhoritcd. or actually rnadc
hcrcundcr, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BV CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND regulations/ EQUAL EMPLO.VMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In cortnection with the performance of the Scrviee*. ihc
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county Or municipal
authorities which impose any • obligation or duly upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity law*. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Conmctcr

.shail.comply.wiih ali.fcd<r«l.e.xccutive.ordcri.;n)!c». regulatioas.
ond statutes, and with asy rules, regulations and.guidelines avthe
State or the United Stoiri issue to implcmciti ihcsc rcgulatiotis.
The Coniraeior shall also comply with alt applicable inicHeeiual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
(liiierimlnaic ogainsi employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex. handicap, sexual
orieniition, or national origin and will lokc aninmative action <u
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agiees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of aseetiaining connpliancc with all rutci. regulations
and order), and the covenants, terms and conditions of (his
Agieemeni.

7. PERiSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor *hall at its own cxperue provide all peisoonc)
necessary lo perform the Services. The Contraetor wamnis that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable lews.
7.2 Unless otherwise auihorited in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of s»* (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7. (he Coniraeior shall not hire, and
shall net permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged iri a combined elTori to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who ,is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or pcifonrunte of this Agreement, This
provisionshall survive lertrunaiion of this Agreement.
7.) The Cowracdng Officer specified in block 1.9. or his or her
successor, shall be the Sioie's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the imcrprctalion of this Agreement,. Ihe
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for (he State.

Page 3 of5
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6. EVEKT OF DEFAULTmCMCDICS.

8.1 hny one w more of ihe followini ecu or omiittoni of (he
Conirector thill consiiiutc tncveni ofdefiuli hcreundcr ("Event
orDcfsuir):
8.1.1 ftilurc (0 perronn ihc Services ssiitficiorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 fsilurc (0 submit any repon required hercundc: snil/oi
6.1.3 failure to perform eny other covcr\ir\i, term or coirdiiion of
(his Agreement.
8.2 Upon the oeeurrence of any Event of Oefiuli, the Sole may
(skc trty one, or more, or ell. of the following actiorts;
8.2.1 give the Contractor owrinen noikcipeeifying (he Event of
Default erMl Tcquiring it to be reincdicd within, in the absence of
D greater orleucr apeeificaiionof time, thirty ()0) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement. efTcetivc iwo(2)day)on<r giving the
Contractor rtoiicc of lerrninaiiort;

6.2.2 give the Contractor a wrinen notice spccifytrti the Event of
Default tni suspending all paymenu to be made under this
Agieement and ordering (hat (he portion of the contract price
which would olherwisc accroc to the Corttracior during the
perlod'frorn (he dstc of such notice urttti mch time as the State

""determines that the Coniraclor has cured the Event of Dtfaoli
thill never be paid to Ihe Contractor;
6.2.3 give the Corttraetoro wnii<noo<icc (pccifyingihc Event of
Ocfauli and s<( off agairui any other obligations the State may
owe irt '.he Conirocior any dtmsgcs the State auffcrs by reason of
any Event of Default; andfor
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement a.^ brcnchcd, temiiniie the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies ot law or in equity, or
hoih.

8.3. No failure by Ihe Stale to enforce any provisions hcreofaflcr
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsetfoerM Event of
Default. No C-xpreis failure locnfurcc any Event of Ocfauli shall
be deemed a waiver of she righi of ihc State to cnfortc CKh and
all of (he provisioru hereof upon any further or other Evervi of
Default on (he pan of (he Coixricior.

9. termination.
9.1 Notwiihsianding paragraph 8, (he State may. at its sole
discretion, icrntinat'e the Agreemetti for any rca.ton. in ulsoic or
in pan. by thirty (30) days wriiirn ttoiice (o the Conirtrier.ihai
(he Sute is cicrciiing its option to lerminitc the Agreement.
9.2 In (he event of an early (crminaiion of this Agreement for
any ruvon'othcr than ihc eompleiio'n of (he Services, the
Cnniracior shall, at the .Suie's discretion, deliver to the
Conirieiing Officer, not later thai) fiflcen (I i) days a tier the dale
of (crmination., B rtpon ("Tefmination Report") describing in
dcuil ell Services performeJ. and the eoruriVt price carrted, to
and including the date of termination. The form, tubjcci maiicr,
conieni. and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any final Report described in the attached
EXHISrr 6. In addition, at the Stale's discrxiion, (he Coritractor

shall, within 15 days of notice of early lerminaicon, devclup oni}

submit to the State a Transition Plan for acAtiecs urrder the

Agrccn<nt.

10. DATA/ACCCSS/CONFlDENTlALirV/

preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "daia" shall mean all
inforrruiion and (Kings developed or ob(aincd during the
performince of. or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited (0. all studies, reports,
flics, formulae, surveys, mips, chsni, sound recordings, video
recordings, pkioriil reproductions, driwings, Onalyxs, graphic
representations, computer piograrns, computer printouts, noiei,
letters, memorindi. papers, and docqmcnii. all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and iny property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for thai purpose
under this Agreemeni, slisll be the property of the Stoic, and
shall be rctumed to the State upon demand or upon termination
of (his Agreement for any reason.
10.3 ConfidcAiitiiiy of data thai! be govenwd by N.H. RS A
chapter VI-A or other ctisting law. Oiselosurt of data requires
, prior wrinen aporgvil of the State.

11..CONTRACTOR'S REUATlON TO THE STATE. In the
perrormancc of (his Agreemeni the Contractor is in ell respects
an independent conenictor. and is neither en agent nor an
emplo)te of the State. Neither the Contractor nor ony of its
ofncers. employees, agents or members shsH luve authority (o
bii>d the State or receive any benefits, woefccrt' compcn.vaiion or
other errsolumenis provided by the State to its employees.

12. iASSICNMENT/DELECaTION/SUBCONTRaCTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not auign. or otherwise transfer any.
inicrtsi in this Agreemeni without the prior UTilten noiicc, which
shall be provided to.the State at least fifleen (15) days prior to
the asjlgnmeni. and a wriiicn consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall uunsiiiutc
osstgnmcm, "Chsnge of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or scries of related transactions in

which a third party, (ogclher wiih its ilTiliaiu, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifly percent (50%) or more of ihe
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combirKJ voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) (he sale of si) or subsundolly all

. of the assets of the Contractor.
12.2 Nerte of the Services shall be lubcomricied by the
Contractor without prior wriiicn notice and coruent ol'ihc State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions coniiined
in a subuoniraci or an assignmeni agreement lo which it is not a

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise cicmpicdby law.
the Contractor shall indemnify end.hold harmless the Suic, its
ofnecrs am) employees, from and agaitut atiy and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any pcrsortal injury or prcperry damages,
patent or copyright infringcrrscnt. or other claims asserted against
the Stale, its officers or crrtployccs. which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO Kts or omission of the

Page 4 of 5
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Conincior. or >ubconmc(OfS. including but noi limited lo ibc
neKligertco, rtcklciS or inicniiomt cortducl. The Sute iiial) noi
be liable for any costs mcurred by the Coni/ocior eriting under
(his parigniph 13. No(^ta(htlanding (he foregoing, nothing herein
conuincd shnll be deemed to constiiuie o waiver of the sovereign
imrmimiy of ihe Smc. which immunity is hereby reserved to ihe
Siaie. This covenstu* in paragraph I] shall survive - ihe
lerminaiion of ihis Agreemenl.

U.iNSURANCe.
14.1 The Ceniracior shall, at iu. sole eipcrue. obtain and

continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
tubconirac(or or auigoee lo obtain and mainuin in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against olt claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than {1.000.000 per occurrence and {2,000.000 sf^regate
or cicess: and

14.1.2 special cause ofloss coverage form covering all property
subjeci to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount itoi less (haa
80V« of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsemenis pppiovcd for use in the State.

"oTNcw Hampshire by the N.H. Depaitmeni of Insurance, and
'  issued by insurers licensed in the Slate of New Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to (he Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her sucecisor. o ccnificotcis) of
insuraitce for all insurance rrquircd under this Agreemcrtt.
Contractor shall also ̂ imish lo the Contracting Officer identified
in block (.9. or his or her successor, ccnifKOicfs) of insurance
for ell rcncwttl(.<t) of insurance required under this Agreement r>o
later than (cn (10) days prior lo the eapiraiion date of each
insurance policy. The ccnificaieCs) of insuritrtcc and any
renewals thereof shall be ettxhed and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKCRS'COMPENSATION.

IS. 1 By ligning ihis agreement, the Connactor agrees, certifies
and wamni.t that (he Conirscior is in compliattce with or exempt
from, ihe rcquiremcnls of N.H. RSA chapter 2%\-h("i¥orktrs'
Cor>\pensoiion
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subjeci to the rcquiiemenis
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, ConUaeiot shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee lo Secure and maintain.
payriKm of Workers* Compcnstiion in connection with
activiiiu which (he pcnon prt^oscs to undertake puniiani to this
AgTccmeni. The Contractor shall furnish Ihe Contracting OfTicer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her stiCccssor, proofof Workers'
Compensation in (he manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewalfs) (hereof, which shall be
attached end ore incorporated herein by reference.. The Stale
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums Or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any 'subeonKacior or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' CompenUiion laws ir> connection wilh the
performance of the Services under (his Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a pany hereto lo (he other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given a( (he lime
of mailing byecnified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Stales
Post Office addressed in the panics at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

P. AMENDMENT. This Agreement maybe amended, waived
or discliorged only by an insinameni in willing signed by (he
panics hereto anil only aOer approval uf such amendment,
waiver or discharge by (he Governor and Eneculiye Council of

the State of New Hampshire unless r>o such approval is required
under the circuinstinccs pursuant to Sute law. rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
taws of the Sute of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and-
inures to the benefit of the panics and (heir respective successors
and assigns.' The wording used in (his Agreement is the wording
chosen by (he parties to express their mutual ir^tcni, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any pirty.
Any actions.arisint put.of.lhis.Aircerucnt.ibail.bc.brouflbiAod.

.maintained in New Htenpsbire Superior Court wtueh shall have .
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFMCTINC TERMS, (n the event of a connici

between the lerms of this P-37 form (as' modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or auachmenis and amendment thereof, (he terms of (he
r-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A)xhall conitol.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do not inieisd to
benefit any third panics and this Agreement ihall not be
(-onsirurd to confer any such benefil.

21. HEADINGS. The hcadinp throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, artd ihc words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
intcfprctaiion, consirvciion or meaning of the provisions of Ihis
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set fonh in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by tefercnce.'

23. 5EVERABILITV. In the cvcm any ofthc provlsionsoflhis
Agreement etc held by a eoun of compcKni jurisdiction to be
rontrar)' to any state or federal law. the renuining provisions of
this Agreement will icmain In full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE agreement. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counicrpans. each of which shall he
deemed an origiriel, constitutes the entire agreement arxl
understanding between the panics, and supersedes uH prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Workforce

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P*37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Oale/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows;

3.3. The parlies may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional years
"from the Completion Dale, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and required
governmenlal approval.

1.2. Paragraph 12. Assignment/Oelegalion/Subcontracts. is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3.. .Su.bconiractors are.subject to.the same.conuactual conditions as the ■
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements svith ell subcontractors, specifying (he work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage, the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of an subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.
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Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

.1.1. The Contractor shall erasure services in this agreement are available to;
t

1.1.1. The Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Continuum of Care wor1<force,
Statewide.

1.1.2. Professionals providing services specific to the Partnership for Success
(PFS) grant, as identified by the Oepa/iment including, but not limited to:

1.1.2.1. Student Assistance Professionals.

1.1.2.2. Substance Misuse Prevenllon professionals.

1.1.3. Individuals providing services specific to the State Opioid Response
(SOR)granlasideniified-bylheDeponmenl-including.-buVnotHmltedto:-

1.1.3.1. SCR grant-funded conlraciors.

1.1.3.2. Families including, but not limiied to. the nuclear family,
grandparents and olher relatives impacted by substance use
disorder (SUO).

1.1.3.3. Programs working svith children impacted by familial substance
use.

1.2. The Contractor shall administer a .multi-component training program which
includes, but is not limited to:

1.2.1. Developing a training calendar that offers a systematic approach to
meeting credentiallng and continuing education requirements across the
AOD Continuum of Care system, that includes (he following training
suites:

1.2.1.1. Prevenllon;

1.2.1.2. Intervenlion;

1.2.1.3. Trealmeni: and

1.2.1.4. Recovery.

1.2.2. Planning, coordinating and providing, training opportunities; both Irr-
person and through eLearning platforms; which cover core, intenrnediale.
and advanced levels of instruction; are approved by the Department; and
include, but are not timited to:

1.2.2.1. In stale fiscal year 2021: •

i;2.2.1.1. A minimum of 58 live, professional development training
events with in-person and virtual attendance options,
including, but not limited to skill building practice series end

NewHsmpshliB Alcohol andDnjc Abuse ' EiTubilB - Coniractcy InlUa's
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targeted training tor emerging issues, with at least six (6)
being offered Inlhe northern regions of NH.

1.2.2.1.2. A minimum of five (5) new. on-demand webfnars. added to
the existing library of webinars.

1.2.2.1.3. A minimum of four (4) kinship family trainings.

1.2.2.1.4. A minimum of six (6) Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
trainings, es detailed in Subsection 1.3. -

1.2.2.2. In state fiscal year 2022:

1.2.2.2.1. A minimum of 54 live, professional development training
events with In-person and virtual attendance options
including, but nol limited to skit! building pradice series and
targ©led.lraining.for.emerging.l$sues..wiih.al.least.six.(6)-

; being-offered in the northern regions of NH. • • •

1.2.2.2.2. A minimum of five (5) new. on-demand webinars. added to
the existing library of webinars.

1.2.2.2.3. A minimum of eight (8) Bureau of Drug and Alcohof
Services trainings, as detailed in Subsection 1.3.

1.2.3. Providing partlcipanls with training materials.

1.2.4. Ensuring training is designed for different adult teaming styles and levels
of knowledge.

1.2.5. Ensuring training is provided by qualified presenters, as approved by the
Department.

1.2.6. Providing integrated. eLearning tools, wher> appropriate.

1.2.7. Providing participants with approved Continuing Education Credits,
applicable to (he training audience and certification needs.

1.2.8. Providing participants with continuous access to a library of a minimum
of 50 on-demand webinars.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide the training space, materials, and logistical
support for two (2) trainings on a quarterly basis, al no cost to participants,
utilizing trainers provided by the Department, which include;

1.3.1. The Inilial Training on Addiction and Recovery, a six (6) hour, in-person
training.

I

1.3.2. Families and Addiction, a three (3) hour, in-person training.

1.4. The Contractor shall ensure training sessions are consistent with the required
professional standards and core competency needs of the worlcforce which
include, but ere not limited to, relevant training for:

New Hampshire Mcohci and Drug Abuse EihiUt B Ccuitrsctor Irdllsis
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'1.4.1. Certified Prevention Specialists (CPS).

1.4.2. Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselors (LADC).

1.4.3. Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselors (MLADC).

1.'4.4. Certified Recovery Support Workers (CRSW).

1.5. Tha Contractor shall collaborate with subject matter experts, as directed(and
Identified by the Department, to develop.and improve trainirtg curricula and
contenl to meet the needs of the target audiences for PFS and SOR grants.

1.6. The Contractor shall monitor attendance at each event to ensure individuals

attend for the full length of the training in order to obtain continuing education
'certincates which includes,, but is not limited to:

1.6.1. Ensuring positive verificalion of attendance at each event for each
participant using a'method'approved'bythe'Departmenl. :

1.6.2. Complying with the requirements of the New Hampshire Department of
Informalion Technology for tracking online attendance.

1.7. The Contractor shall Identify and engage qualified presenters to deliver
training opportunities, as approved by the Department.

1.8. • The Conlr'aclor shall market training events utilizing methods approved by the
Oepartment which include, but are not limited to:

1.6.1. Maintaining an email list and sending. email notifications to the ADD
' workforce and identified training audiences.

1.8.2. Maintaining and publishing an evenls calendar on the Contractor's
website..

1.8.3. Publishing and distributing a newsletter to the AOO workforce and
identified training audiences on a quarterly basis.

1.9. The Contractor shall develop and utilize an evaluation plan, process and
tool(s) to evaluate each training event, as approved by the Department and
in accordance with each accrediting body, that includes, but is not limited to:

1.9.1. Coilecting and analyzing participant evaluation responses for each
training session.

1.9.2. Compiling and analyzing aggregate data from evaluation responses no
less than every six (6) months.

1.9.3. Sharing evaluation data with the Department to ensure the program is
meetings its goals and for continuous quality improvement of the training
program,

1.10. The Coniractor shall utilize a learning management system to monitor and
manage the training program. The system shall comply with DolT
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requirements end include, but not be limited to;

1.10.1. An Administrative Dashboard that includes, but is not limited to. the ability
to;

1.10.1.1. Receive and track information that includes, but is not limited to:

1.10.1.1.1. Registration and payment for trainings.

1.10.1.1.2. Date and title for each training session!

1.10.1.1.3. Number of registrations, attendees and Individuals on
waitlists for individual trainings.

1.10.1.1.4. Information for each participant, including:

1.10.1.1.4.1. Name of participant;

lTi0.-irr.4.-2. Jobtiile:

1.10.1.1.4.3. Nanneof participant's agency or organization;

1.10.1.1.4.4. Mailing Address;

1.10.1.1.4.5. Email address; and

1.10.1.1.4.6. Fees paid by participant and/or agency.

1.10.1.2. Send and receive training evaluations to and from participants.

1.10.2. A Participant Portal thai includes, but is noi limited to:

1.10.2.1. The ability to register and pay for training.

1.10.2.2. Personal proHles thai allow participants to access training
summaries, and continuing education certincates based on

:  attendance. .

1.11. The Contractor shall work dosely with tKe Department to support current and
emerging initiatives for improving the State's system of care including, but not
limited to:

1.11.1. Developing training materials on particular topics for target populations,
, ,, as needs arise, at the request of the Department.

1.11.2. Adjusting acliviiies and staffing to meet Department needs and the needs
of the workforce.

1.11.3. Updating (raining topics and classes as scientific evidence evolves.

1.12. The Contractor shall provide access to training for Bureau of Drug and
Alcohol Services employees, when space is available, for any scheduled
training session, at no additional cost.

1.13. The Contractor shall Identify the needs of the workforce and ensure trainings
offered ere not duplicative of existing trainings offered through other venues

Ne«vHampsNro Alcohol ood Onig Abuse ExIubi'lB ConitBclof tnlliats
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by:

1.13.1. Meeting regularty with the Department to seek input on Iraining needs in
support of ongoing initiatives and other emerging needs.

1.13.2. Collecting and ahal/zlng participant evaluation feedback for individual
trainings and on a bi-annual basis.

1.13.3. Soliciting feedback from pariicipanis.- professionals and key stakeholders
regarding the iraining needs of the NH ADD workforce.

1.13.4. Paniclpaling in worldorce development educalion and training
committees to learn what other agencies are Intending to offer and to
inform the agencies of the training plans.

1.13.5. Attending licensing and certincalion board meetings to identify provider
needs.^

171316. Actively engaging in the planning of collabofalive conferences;

1.14. The Contractor shall admlnisler a process to award scholarships.in an
amount not less than $10,000 for each state fiscal year to NH AOD
Continuum of Care service providers to attend training events, as approved
by the Department, which may Include, but are not limited to events
sponsored by:

1.14.1. AdCare Educational Insliiule of New England.

1.14.2. The New England Addiction Technology Transfer Center (ATTC).

1.14.3. Prevention Technology Transfer Center (PTTC) Network.

1.15. The Corilractor shall admlnisler a process to award scholarships in the
amount of not less than $2,000 for stale fiscal year 2021 to individuals for
whom cost to attend SOR-funded trainings is a barrier, ensuring final
determination of awards is approved by the Department.

1.16. The Contractor shall maintain a web presence for-the trainings provided on
the Contractor's website, www.nhadaca.org. which shall Include, buijs nol
llmlled to:

1.16.1. A calendar of training events offered or sponsored.

1.16.2. The ebillty for participants to register for training.

1.16.3. Access to ell eLeamIng opponunilies offered through this program.

1.17. The Conlractor may collect registration fees from training participants,
excluding training participants attending the Initial Training on Addiction and
Recovery and Families and Addiction quarterly trainings for training expenses .
that exceed the amount funded by the Department.

1.18. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of 85% of.revenue generated from

N«wH4mpsN/« Alcohol nndOrvv Abuso EAibiifl ' Conirociy ifaliait
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registraiidn feescollecied are reinvesled to enhance the training program, as
approved by the Department.

1.19. The Contractor shall increase siistainability of the training program by
leveraging resources to increase and expand the number of training
opportunities offered.

1.20. The Contract shall conduct a project kick-off meeting with the Department
and identified project staff within 20 business days of the contract effective
dale to review:

1.20.1. Contract requirements;

1.20.2. Initial work plan; and

1.20.3. Initial timelines.

"1:21: The'Contractbr'ghairprovide'a'Wbfk'plan'ahd tirrieiine'td'th'e'O^partm^fth'at"
defines the goals, objectives, activities, deliverables, and due dates to the
Department for approval, ensuring:

1.21.1. The inilial worV plan and timeline are provided to the Department within
10 business days of the project kick-oft meeting.

1.21.2. Changes to worit plans or timelines are approved by the Oepartmeni prior
to implementation.

1.22. The Contractor shall provide an evaluation to the Department for approval
within 10 business days following the kick-off meeting that specifies how
trainings will be evaluated.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

•  2.1. The Contractor -shall use and disclose Protected Health Information In

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996. and in

' accordance with the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by (he parties.

2.2. The Contractor shait manage all conridentlal ddta related to this Agreement
In accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits 0 through K, which are attached -
- hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3,1. . The Contractor shall provide written monthly progress reports to the
Department regafding accomplishment of contract goals and performance
measures.- The Contractor shall ensure reports include, but are not lirnited

Now Alcohol ond Oaj8 Abus« EiWbil B Coni/aqof InillaK f/^
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to:

3.1.1. A summary of Ihe work performed during the, previous month.

3.1.2. Encountered and foreseeable key issues and suggested mittgaiion
strategies for each.

3.1.3. Scheduled trainings for the.following quarter.

3.1.4. A summary of evalualion results from services provided during the
previous month.

3.1.5. Updates to the work plan.

3.2. The Contractor shall complete and submit an annual report no later than 60
days after the end of each state nscal year that includes, but is not limited to;

3.2.I. A complete orooram overview.

3.2.2. Accbmplishments'towards'prbgra'm goalS'T'^'^rfdr'mance mea^ure§.

3.2.3. End of year financial report, including revenue reinvested.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall collect a completed evaluation sheet from no less than
85% Of paflicipants who attend a treinlng event.

4.2. The Department will monitor performance of the contract by trainee
satisfaction survey results that reflect an 65% or higher rating of trainee
satisfaction through evaluation results submitted.

4.3. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Oeparlmeni
to enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program
delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.4. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department. Including client-level demographic, performance, and service
data.

4.5. Where applicable, the Conlraclor shall collect and share data with the
Department In a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes.

. 5.1.1. The Contractor agrees thai, to the extent future state or federal legislation
or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein,
the State has the hghi to modify Service priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

•5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically

NewM»mpjhir»AIC0hc*ert()DfvaAbUl6 eAftjil B Conlfactor
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Appropriate Programs end Services

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the contract effective
dale, a delaiied descriplion of the communication access and language
assistance services they will provide to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services to persons with timiied English proficiency,
people who are deaf or have hearing loss, are blind or have low vision,
or who have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. Ail documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Conlracl shall include the following statement, 'The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract,

.with.the.Siaio.of-New-Hampshire.-Oepartment.of-Haallh.and-Human.
•Services.- with funds providcd- ln parl-by the Stale of New Hampshire-
end/or such other funding sources as ware available or required, e.g.. (he
United States Department of Health and Human Services.'

5.3.2. Ail materials produced or purchased under the conlracl shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, produclion. dislribulion or
use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to;

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limiled to:

6.1.1'. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecllng all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor In the performance of the Contraci, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records shall be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and property reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, andpartment, ar
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to-include, without limitdtion. all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence ot costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

6.2. - During the term of this Contract and ihe period for reienilon he'reunder, the
Department, the tJnited States Oepartmenl of Health and Human Services,
and any of their designated representatives shall have access to ell reports
and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number-of units provided for in the Contract and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligalions as. by the terms of the
Contract are to be performed after-the end of the tefm of lhis Gontrect endfor-

• - • -survive the -lermlnalion of the Contract)'shair terminate, provided however,
that If. upon review of Ihe Final Expenditure Report (he Department shall
disallow any expenses claimed by the Conlractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, (0 deduct the amount of
such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the
Contractor.

Now Hampihtro AlcoKd and Drug Abuto ExNb>l B Conuodof Witals
Counsdor A3sod3tiO<i <Vb/o New HompaM^
TffllAlng initiiui# on Addictive Disofdc/i . . _
RFP-2021-BOAS.OS-rRAIN.O^ Pago 9 of 9 Date,



DocuSign Envelope ID: 98C02911.8AB6-4Ee2-96FC-D9D6298CBBF7

OocuSign Envelope 10; 806BA452-D6A3-4CBO-94A6-e2e6Ad4eD61B

OocuSIgn Envelope ID: ESAOSSSr^eiOMESC-BCie-ZZOASESBZEeF

New Hompehlre Oepartmont of Health and Human Services
•Training for Alcohol and pthorDrvfl<A6D) Workforce

"  EXHIBITC

2.

3.

'1.1.3.

. i

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement Is funded by: .

;  1.1. 36.74% Federal Funds
t  • ' ' *

..1.1.1. - Substance Abuse Prevention & Treatmcn! Slock Grant
.  (SAPTBG). as awarded on10/1/19. by the Department of'Healih

,  - and Human Services. Substance Abuse and Mentel Health
Services Adminlslration (SAMHSA). Center for Substance Abuse
Treatrhenl. CFDA 93.959. FAIN TI083041.

.  1.1.2. ■ NH State ppioid Response Grant (SOR). as awarded on 9/30/18.
'• by the .pepartmenl of Health and Human Services, .Sybstar^ce

•  ̂use and Mental Health Sendees Administration (SAMHSA).
,  Center for Substance Abuse Treatment. CFDA 93788. FaIn .

Tj08l685.-. — . . .

NiH PartrieTship for Sucbess inttiative Cram (Pf"s2) as a^rded on
9/30/1.5. by the Deparimen! of Health and Human Servide's

.. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services AdrhlnislraUon
(SAMHSA). Center for Substance Abuse Prevention CFDA
93.243. FAIN SP020796. '• * . ,

47.68% Other Funds (Governor's Commission on Alchohol and Other.
Drugs).

"1.3. M 5.58% GerieralFunds. =-

For the purposes of this. Agreement, the Depariment has .identified the
Cdfilractoras a Contractor. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.
•Raymenl shall be on 'a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
in.cwrred in tb;e .fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
.the approved .line item, as specified in .Exhibits C-1. Budgel throyoh Exhibit C-

.  2, Budget.

shallisubmit an invoice in a form satisfactory to ilje Stale by the
hfventiclh(20th)worklngdayofth8follpw}n9monih, unlessothervwsespecified '.which idenUfles and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses Incurred

■; In the pnor month. The Cont/octor shall ensure the Invoice Is cornpleled. daled
end relumed to.the Departrrient In order to initiate payrnenl.- Invpicesishal) be

_ net any other revenue received towards the services bilied ln fulfillment of. this""
agreement. ;•!•••

.4.1. ■ Ba^op documentation shall Inctude. but Is not limited to:

... . .General Ledger showing revenue end expenses lor the cpnl/ad.";

.1.2.

,  N«wHar^n{roA|(»hciiiindDn/gAbv5e
... d/bfa Now HampiWro.* •Tra/nlholrttflule'dh Addicbv8,Diso/d(xs •

•iV'"f- RFP.205»-GOAS.ftS-TJUJN4>r-
Rav.OIWlJ .

Eit^C

.Pega 1014

ContQoiprl^sit
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New Hampshire Department of Health end Human Services
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EXHIBIT C

4.1.2. Ttmesheels and/or lime cards signed by bolh employee end
supervisor lhat support the hours employees worked lor wages
rcporled under this contract.

4.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Pad 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for ;

,, ' salanes and wages must be based on.records that accurately
•  reflect the work performed.

4.1.3. Per 2 CFR 200.430 (iii) Labor records musl reasonably reflect ihe
total activity lor which each employee la compenMted. showir>g
percentages for time spent on activities under this contract end all •
other activities (totaling no more than 100%).

4.2. The following backup documentalion may also be requested as needed:
'4.2.1. Invoices supporting expenses reported,

^  ' 4.2.1.1.-Per SAMSHA.requireme,nts. meals are-generalty unellowable-
^  *" uriless they are an integral part of a-conference grahtTOfr

specifically staled as an allowable expense in the FOA.:Grant
.  funds may be used for light snacks, not to exceed $3.00 per

person for clients.

4.2.2, Cost center reports, submitted only as requested by the
Oepartment.

4.2.3. Prufit ar^d loss report, submitted only as requested by the
Oepartment.

5. In lieu ol hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic sigr^ture and ■
emailed.to invoicesforconlracts@dhhs,nh.QOv. or Invoices may be nriaile.d to.
Contract Manager for RFP-202t-BDAS-05-TRAlN
Department of Health and Human Services
Bureau of Drug & Alcohol Services ' -

\■ 105 pleasant .Street, Main Bldg.. 3rd Floor North
Concord, NH 03301 ! " " v '

6.

7.

The Slate shall rriake payment to ihe'C'onlractor wllhin thirty, (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice er^ If
si^ictent funds are available, subject to 'Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions ,
Fprim Nunn.^r P-37 of this Agreement.

;.The final invoice shall bQ duo to the Slate rx) later than forty (4()) dayS after the
opnlracl coiinplelio'n date specified In Form.P-37. General Provis.iQns Block 1, .7
Completjqn Date. ;; •

The Contractor musl provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of i^.rytces, in
compliance with fuo.ding requirements.

Now. A»cohcJ ond Oiug Abu«
CounMitors AuQcJatlon (i/b/s New Hsmpshi/o

"TroWnfl .InjtJrula en, A^ictive divord^
RfP-Mji-BOASOS-TRAmOl
fWy-OiiwiV " ' '■

EiN&itC

Pa04 2 oI 4

Co^ctor trMidt'l

•  --
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug <AOD) Workforce

EXHIBIT C

9. The Conbactor agrees thai funding under this Agreemenl may t>e withheld.-In
• wtwieor in part'In the event of non-compliance with the terms .and condllions

of ̂ xhlblt B, Scope of Services.

10. Notwilhstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contrador agrees that-
funding under this agreement may be withheld. In wnola or In part. In the event
of; non<ompliance with any Federal or Stale law. rule or regulation, applicable
to the servloes provtdad. or If the said services- or products have not been
satisfactorily comd'leted in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
egreament. ••

11. N^qtwithstandir^ Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37. char>g8S
limited to. adjusting amounis within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between Slate Fiscal Years and budget dess lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, vwthout
■obtaining approval of the Governor end Executive-Council.-if rte'eded'end-

-■justtfied.- - .. ■
12. Audits

12.1. The Conlmctof is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
■  If any of the following conditions exist:
12.1.1. Cqodiiion A • The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in

tet'flrarfunds,received as.a subrecipient pursuanfto 2 CFR.part
■.V 200, during.ihe most recently completed fiscal year.

• 12.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the ■
requirements of NH R$A 7:26, lll-b, pertaining .to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1.000.000 or more. .
Condition C - The Contractor Is a public company and required by
Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit
an annual finandai audit. r

12.1.3.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Conlraclor shall submit an annual single audit
perforrned by an independent Certified Public Accountant <C^A) to the
Oeportmont wlhin 120 doye after rhc close of the Contrector'e fi scal
year, oonduct^inaccordance with the requirements of 2 CFRParl 20.0.
Subpart F of the Uniform AdminisirBtive..Requirements. Cost Principles,
and Audit Requiramenis for Federel awards.

12.3. -If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Conlrector shall submit en
annual financial Budii pertormed by an independent CPA Within 120

■ dajre after the ctose'of the Contractor's fiscal year.
12.4. In addition to. and not In any way In limltalion of obligations of the

ConlrBCl. it. Is understood and agreed by the Contractor, that the. ^

Ne«Hamp3hIrt Alcohol ondOu0 AbuM '
.Coonietori AMOcJsUon d/tVo N«w Hompshtio
Tratnlnp instSfuie or> Md'ctlve Disorders

::RfP-2W1.aOAS-05-TRAINOI .• •" ••• . - PutiUi w
flov.OIXtt/lfi- .

ConvxU' InUM ■  :
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EXHIBIT C

Contraclor shall be held liable for any slate or federal audii-exceplions
and shall retum lo the Departmenl all payments made .under the
Conuacl to which exception has been "taken, or which have been,
disallowed because of such an exception.

Now Alcohd end Divg Abu3u C ConUocKy Mbli
Counsolofi AAioctBlion d/b'o New HamptNm

■ TfalnJngTfiyjruJfioriAddieJjvaOijordet^ "Q U \A-^h
ftFP.703»-BbA$OS-TRAJNOI ' ^ ci*9 r'7 .
Rov.oiw.i9
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Exhibit D

CERTinCATlON ftCGARWNQ PRUQ^TtEe WORKPLACE REQUIR£MEWTfi' "

Tho Vendor idenlified In Section 1.3 ollho Generel Provisions agrees (o comply vvith ihe provtjione of • •
Scdkxis 5151.5160 of (ha OAjg-Free Workplace Act ofl 988 (Pub. L. lOG^OO/Tltla V. Subtitie D;.41
.U.S.C. 701 el eeg.K and fixthcr agrees to have the Conuaclor's reprasontaUve. as kJenlKiod In Soctlona
1.11:8nd-1.12 of the Conoraf Provisions oxoojIb fre foflowing Cortlficelion:

ALtIeRNATIVEI. FOR ORANTESSOTHEA THAN INDIVIDUALS '
US DEPARTMENT Of HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES ♦ CONTRACTORS
US.OEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION.. CONtRACTORS
~U9 DEPARTMENT PF AORICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certfflcDtlon (s required by the reguletions Implementfng Sections 5151'5I60 o» the Oriio-Free
Workplace Ad of 1888 (Pub. L. 100.630. TiitoV.SubtillBD.-dl U.S.C. 701 WSflQ.). The January 31'
1989 rogulaUoru wore emended end published es Part 11 of the Mey 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681.2t691).'6ndree^lro ccrtiflcodon bygrarHaes (ar>d by inference, sub-granlees end sut>-
contractors), prior to award..lh8Hheywifm3kilah a drvg-freeworkpldce. Soclfon 3017.630(c) of the ''

^rgguXflJbn fyojjdes.»flt^g^^lee^(e^ by.wl^^^ ond sub-contract<yil thai is a Siete ''
...jr®y oh^ c f'scal year In Upu pTcSofioDles^
each^nt during (he federal lUcal year covered by 0^ certifica'iioo'. "the ceriircate set otAVeTow.Vq p""" ',
meiehel rcpro^iation of fad up^ vrftteh reliance Is placed vvhen the agertcy.aYvards ihe'grani. Falsa
certiflcalioo or viototbn of the certiftcaticn shoV be grounds for suspension of peymenti, suappnsion or'
terrnlnatJonofgranis. ofgoven>menlwrdeouspen»lonordobarmeflt. Cont/actora dslno thls-form ahouJd
send-ltto: ' . '

■ Commiwionef

NH Oeportmenl of Health and Human Services
1^ Pleasant Streoi,.

; Concord. NH 0^301.6505

1. Tho-gronleo oeniftes that it wB or vVll contbue.lo provide o drug-free workplace by;
1,1.' f^Wishlng a stotamem noOfying employe w that Ihe unlawful manufacture, dlstribotw.

dispensfrtg. pbssas^n or use of a cont/obed cubstance fs prohtbilod in Che grantee a '
.  and specifying the adIooalhaiwSJbo.fakenogairwemptoyees for vioiaiion of such

' • •. 'prohibition:
.-12. . efitobttahlngon.ongolng.drug-freeewafencssprogramtoinfom.empfayeosaboul .

. 1-2.1.' Thedangeracfdrug obuseintheworkpfaoe;
1.2.2. The granlw's policy of mainlaining a drug-free workpiece:
1 •2.3... Any ovallabfo drug counseling, fohobiljiaOon,.on<} employee osaiatonoe programs; and
1.2.4. 'The penalties thai may be Imposed upon employoos for drug otMBO ̂ ^oUoTtt

DCCUTTingln.the workplace;
.  , 1.3. Making il a roquiroment thai oochomployoa to bo engaged In the performerice of the gronlt>e

•. given a copy of fho stalemirrt required by perayeph (a):
1.4. Not^ng.the.employee In the stalemeni required by paragraph (a) that. o» acondttJpoof

.j employthenl under Ihe gram. lf>e employqe will
1.4.T.. Abide'bylhe terms of Ihe giBtement;or>d

.  1.4.2. NolltytheemployorlnwTiiingofhIsorheroonvlctlonforayloiaOonofecftmlnaldrvg
statute occurring In Ihe workplsce no later than five calendar day^ after soc'h '' .
convicUOh; ' =

1.5. NoOfytng the agency In wrliing. within tan colander days.ofCer receiving nodce under • •
subparegraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise rocelving oduel notice of evch corrviction. ••

•  Employer# of cor>vic(ed ernployoos must provide notice, incfuding posrtfon 6ljo.,to every grerii
Officer on who^ grant aciMly the convidcd employee was worlilnQ. unless Che Federal .agency" '•

€*Nbiip.C«itfit3liMfDga;(Jifto[Vufl'FrM Uondtflrutbli.
WodipiectReo'konienU i; ■ rv',/ o'• •CUOrHSriiori).. Pi>«.lcl2;' • .p*jb^-ir20(0
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New HempsMre Department of Keatth ond Human Servtcaa
EihibttO

dostgneted e ca.ntral poini for (ho mcaipl of 6uc^ notices. Notica shall include the
idenUfcalion numbe^e) of each affectsO Qrant;

. 1.6.- T^ing one ol the foOowing eclions. wHhin ̂  calendar days of receiving notke ̂ nder
* oub^ogroph 1.4.2. rofpect to ony ompioyee who Is 60 convicted
' 4.6.1. - TaUng'opproprlatepersonnel&ctionasatrtsteuchanempioyee.-uptoehdlnchJclifto

' :lerm(natlqn. consistent wliMhomqutrementa of the RehebBHetlon Act of 1Q73. o»
onier>ded:or

'1.6.2. Reguirbg suc^ emptcyM to partidpaie saUsfaciorily in s drug sbu^ osfiictanee <y
rehobOHsiion program epproved for euch purposes by o Federal. Slate, or locat HoelUi,
law cnforeomeni, Of other eppropdete egency:

1.7. Making 0 good faith effort loconlirtue lomairtlain a drug4reo workplace through
implomentation of paregrepha 1.1. 1.2.1.3.1.4. t.S. and 1.6.

2. The grantoe rnoy.lnsort In the cpace provided bdow the 6(ie(s) for the pertormance d work done In
connection the specffic gronl.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, op code) (list each location)

'Ch^ O' ifuiare ere ivb^taoes on (lie (hat erg not identified h^e.

Vendor Name: ' .
./\l^ 4/cJiof

Date .. ,.,7". Nome
Title;

EihibllO'CerOfcdioftregir^DrugFrof VaodorlNlisb

Cuc»MWte7i)

Wortjiaca Re^ukimanU '
Oil ' V
C> tJ '7a'7/\

PJ0«2^3 OaU O "7 ̂ 0^0
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Now HsmpihlreDoponmertt o1 HooRh ond Human Sarvie*©
Erhlbil 6

CERTIFICATION REGARDINQ LOBBYING

The Vendor Idenbfied In Section 1.3 qI the General Provislona agrees to comply with the provnione pi
..Soctlofi 310 of PiibCc Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions oo Ldhtying. wd •
. 31 U.S.C. 1352, end Rjfther egrees to have ih© Contractor's representaUve, os UondfieOin Sections i.il
and'1.12 of the General Provisions exoculo the (dlowing C«rVfication:

US OEPARTMENT OF HEAITH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARtiMENT OF eOUCATlON . contractors
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indicate epplicabte program covered):
'T^pc^ryjAashtance to Neody Famines under Thle IV-A
'Child ̂ pport Enroroemenl Progrem under TMe IV-D
'Social Senrioes Blcdt.Grant Program under Title )0(
'Medi^d Program under Title XIX
•Communiry.Sarylccs BtocK Grant under Title VI
■'Child Care. Oevefopment Block Grant under TiOa IV '

'trie ui^orslgnt^ cenffiee, to thie best of lib or hof knowledge end iMlief, that:' ^ '
1. No Fedorel appropriated funds have t>oon paid or ©40 be paid by or. on behol/of the underalgnod, to

any peradn' for influendng or attempting to Influence en offloat or employee of any agertcy, a Marnber
of Ctmgress. an officer or emptoyea of Congross, or en emptoyoo of a Momber of CcngrMs tn

: COnnGCCiOhwilh tho awarding of any'Federal contract, contjmjalion, ranawal. omendmenl. v '
modinc^oh of eny.Federal oontraci, grant, loan, or cooperative agreemeni (end, by spepfic mention
8ut>^"nlcc Of sub-conUactof).

2: If any Arnda Other than Federal approprtalad funds have been paid or will bo paid to any poraon for *.
Influenclrig or atlemptJng to InRuonce en office' or ©mpioyee of ony agency, o Mcmtier of Congrns,
on officer w 'ompiDyee of Congress, or en employee of e Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal co'nuect. grant, loan, or cooperaiivo e(peomtmt (and by specinc mentis sub-grentee or 6ut>-
controctor), (hp undersigned aKall complele end submit Standard Form LLL, (CXsclOSuhe Form to
Report Lobbyfng. in accordbnoe with lit in^ctioris. oltoched end tdemlhed es Standard Exhibit E-l.)

t  * '

■ 3. The undersigned shall requird that the Iar>gu8ge of this certificahoh ba included in the award •
docunant for sub-awards at ell tiers (induding suboontracts.'sub-gmnts. and c'oniracu under grantc.
toans, "and cooperative egrcemenla) and that ell sub-redpicriia oheli cortify and diaeloco ocoordingly. '.

This cortlhcotlon oo matoHal representation of fact upon ©hich rollanco was pieced ©4ian this trensactfon
was mode or ©ntarod Into. Submission of this certification la o prerequisite for making or entering into this
ireneecdonimpoacdbySecUon 1-3S2, Tide 31, U.S. Code. Anyperionwhofalistofliethe requlred
certification ehan bo cubbed io o crvO ponolly of not loss than $10,000 and not mor© than $100.000 for
each cuch foiluro. . ■ <

Vendor ■ . )

1r- ^ ■ZQ?,0
)aia Name^/C<y'^<s?>'-c

Eihbii E - CeitiAaUon Rsgarding Lobbying VandorlnhiBis

■  •• "Psgotcri obw
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CERTIFICATION REOARDINQ DEaARMgNT. 8USPEMS10W •. ' -
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The VendorTdeniified In S^ion 1.3 oS the GenemI Provisiont to comply with the provisions o(
:. Executive Offim of the Presidonl. Execulrve Order 12&49 end 4S CFR Pert 76 rogardirtg DebBrment. ■'

Suapension, end Other Roepor^lHUty Martere, end further agrees to have the Conirsaor's •
representaUye. ojdenlrfied in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execvte (he following
CertJfice^:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR certification
1. By.elgn^.er^d subrnl'ning-lhis proposal (contract), the prospective primsty perddpanl Is providing the

certification OM out bdow.

2. The IneblKry of q person to provide the certiflcaiion required betow wio not rxtcessahly rosuit In danlel
.of penicfpelion In this covered Irensaclion. (Inecees^. ihe prospective pertdpenl shall subntH an

.  ex^onaliar> of why I| cermot provide the ceriifice(ior>. The cenrncetfon or explanelion wlB be
considered (n conrtection with the NH Oepertment of Haalih and Humen Services' (OHHS)
dotormlf«iionwhclh«rTo cnlaf into this Iransactior). However, failure of the prospective prtmary
pflfticipant to furnish a ccftrficabon or an oxplanalion shall dsoualKv such person.frorri.perticipalioo.ln

. .w? !r?n.Tflct!po .....

3. The certificetion In this clause (s a material fopresentelion of fact upon which reliance was pieced
OHHS detarmin^ to ente; into this trsrtsocilon. If li is later determined that the prospective. ■

primary participant knowingly reixfered en erroneous certification. In oddition to other remedies ■
■avallatile lo the Fcdefal Govonvne'rrt. OHHS may tormiriale this transaction for cause'or dofault.

4. The prospMUve primary psniclpeni ^en provide Immediate wrincn notice to the OHHS egency to
wmom this proposol (ecrtlratf) Is subminod if ol eny time the prospective primery pehtdpanl learns
•thai its certinqoUori'wes erroneous when submltied or has become emmeous by reason oif-chsnged
circumstances.

5. -The terms fcovercd Ironsoctbn,* 'debarred,' ^suspended,' 'ineligible,* 'lower tier covered
Iranseptlon,' 'partlcJpanl.* 'porBon.* 'primary covered transaction." 'prindpa),' 'proposal.' end
Vduntarify excluded.* as usod in tfxs douse, have the moonings eel out in the Dertrtiliom and .
Coverage sections of the rules Implementing Exocutlve Order 12549: 45 CFR Pa/176. the

'■ ettdched definitions.

6. -The prospo^e prima^ pertldpant egrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should tho ■
proposed covorod traneectlon be enter ed into. 11 shall not knowingly enter ir>to eny tower tier covered
transition a person who H debarred, suspended, declared inciigiblo. or voluntarily oxdudod -- • i '
from poftidpatiori in this covered (ransaclk^, unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant furihor agrees by submitting this proposal (hot It w4l include (he
-dause titled 'CertiflceUon Regarding Debormonl. Suspension, IneilgibUhy and Votunlary Exduston •

.  lowar Tler CdvaradTronsactions.* provided by OHHS. without mooKicatlon. In oH lower tier covjsired ■
transactions and In ail eoGclleKoos for lower ti«r covered tronsactions.

. 6. A participant In.e coverad'trensectionmayreiyupooa certiricaiion of a prospoptive partidparii in'o -
lowar tier eovefed transaction th.al it is r>ot do^rred, suspended, inotiglblo. or Involuntarily excJud^

-  from the covered transection, unless it knows (hat the certification Is erroneous. A partid^nl'may .
' 'decide the fhethod end frequency b/which it deiermtnis the et^biliiypf Us principois. Eech

pariidpant may, but Is not requb^ lo. check the Nonprocurement U(t (of excluded parties).
8. Morning contained In the forego'tng shal bo cortslnKid to require estobtlshmenl of o syslern of records

In order to rertder In'gobd fpllh the certfficetion required by ^is clause. The knowledge ond-- :

EdWF-Cciti-1c«tionRflaan)hflOebsrmentSu»oriioi ■ VendorWtWi
, AnaOtferRssponiljShfWaflers- i/'7a'7A

cucwSfl'uhj Pvgalof2 • Data j' '
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Infc^.ptiiSrft (rfo.particlpani 1$ not fCQuiJOd lod'xceed that Is normally possessed by a poident
person In iho ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for trensecUcns outhorlzod under pamoraph 6 of ihese instnjcUons, If a participant in a
covered trarweaion knowingly enters Into e lower ber covered transaaton with a-person who ia
■uipended. de6orTOd,fr>oag}ble.,orvokjtrtarttye*cluOo<JfrompartlclpoUonlnthlsif8mecOon In ".. .eddWoo to other remedies evallabie to the Federal povenvneni.-OHHS may lermindte this tmnsactjon
forcause.ofdofouft.

Rft|M>WY COVERED TRAWSACTIONS
•11. The pf.Mpective primary pOfWponl certifies to the bcsi-ol Its knowiedoe end belief that It end Its

prlndpels;
are not preseni/ydoborrod. suspended, proposed for dflbofmonl, declared ineligible, orvoluntarily excluded from covered tronsections by any FerJerel depo/lmoni or agency;

11.2. have rwt within e threo-yeor period procedinp this proposal (oonboct) been convicied of or hod
0 civ8 judgment rendered ogajnsl them for commission of fraud ore crtmlnaJ offense. In " ""•  connoctior) wiih oWoJning, ottempUng to obtain, or performing a public (Fedofel. State or local)

^  ̂ f^hsadionorecp.ntraclunderapuWictrarisactfoniviolatlonofFedcrelorStato.antitrust" ' '
——5laM2tSL$2nHL^2!2i>!^.^b<Slt!B5ni.,ih.en..f<*B€'y..tidbery..falsifical>on.or.de$trucUoo.of..w..

1" r£Qa'3l8. JMNMffl'*ostalamDnl5,.or.raccivlng.$tolen.pfOpcrty. ... ."....l.. :..lZ
11.3. flW not presentlylnd^d for olhctfwiso criminally or cMlly charged bye Qovemrrymtale'ntlty

(Federe). State or local) wHh commieaicn of any of the offenses enumeraled In pareoraph (Dfbl -
• .ofthloeertlflebtion:ond •••

11.4. have r*ot w/tlhln o three-yoar. period preceding this appiicatioofprcposel had one or more put>iic
_-trensactioftt (Federal. Slate Of local) fsfmlnaied for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary portidpont Is unaWo to certify to any of the siatemenis tn this
• ceittflMllon; such pfwpeotive partidpanl eM attach on explanation to this proposoJ (ccmtrect). .

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
. .13. By signing and eubmi^ tWs lower tier propossl (oontraa). the prospective lower iter participant, as

(Jefined In 4IS CFJl Pert 76, certifies to tho besl of its knowledga and belief that it and Its principals: '
13.1. arerrotprcsenUydebarred. suspended, proposed for debomner^l. declared fooljgibie; or

voluntanly oxcfudod f^om pertidpallon in this iransection by any fodcrtU d^ertmonl or agency.13.2; "wnare the prospective tower rto partlcipent b unable to certify to any of th'e above, such
preepectJvo portJdponl choV ottoch on explorullon (0 thh proposal (cont/oct).

14. The prospective loiw bar pa/tWpant further agrees by submittcng this proposal (contract) that It will ••
include ctauce enbded 'tpertircolion Regarding Oebarmenl, Suspension, Inoliglbllity, arxJ
Volgn^iy Exclusion - Lower Her Covered Transacltons.- without modlfkatk^ w at) lower tforcbvorod
bansdCtio.rts''end In aO eoldlatiorts for lowor dor covered transactions.

Oo|«. - . ' ■ , Nam'o: '

■  EjiWXlF-CcflJffunionRegwfiog'b^^ Vandurlntfi^
.A«JOt)(i»n«lpon»«fiyMiaori O j/

cv'»f«vninj • Pfoa2c<2 v. CauO ' Y
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CERTtFtCATION OF COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAiNIHG TO

FEDERAL N0NDI9CRIM1NATI0N. EQUAL TREATMENT OF fAfTH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHLSTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vpr^of identified in Section 1.3 of (he General Provisions aorees by slgnahim of the. Contractor'o ^ -
reprmntBtivo 0$ Idontifiod In Sectkma 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Pravaions. to oieou.ie the/oDcnvIr^
eeiitficat^:

Vendtf wil.compiy. and wi\ roqulre any fiubQranlaee Of eubcoooactors to comply, with any ̂ Scablp
federal nondbcdMhotion'requiremente, which mey Include;

- me Omnibus Crime Control aind Safe Streets Ad of 1966 (42 U.S.C. Section 37B9d} which prohibits -
reciptents-'of fodemi funding under this stslule from discnmir\ding, either in emplpym^t practioei cr In
the d^ivery ot services or beneflto. on tho basis.of race. c^r. rotigion, optional origin, o'nd eex. The Act
requlrw certain:rec^lents to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Ptan;

- the Juvenile Justice Oellrtquency Prevention Ad of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Sedion S672(b}) which adopts by
referenco, tho cm! rights obligotcrts of the Safe Streets Act; Recipients of federal fundtng under (hit
statute are'proNbfied troni' disertmlneilng. either in employment practices or in the delivery of lervtces or

..benafits._on.the basis of.race..color..relt0ion. rutionel.or>g(A..aAd Bex..The Acl(nciudas.Edua)..—

...Emplo^ent.Opportunlly.Planf^uiremcais;

• tho Civil Rights A;t of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibite redpler^ts of federol rno/tdal ■
esststarce from di^lminddng on the basis of reoe, color, or nelbrui origin in qny program or eclMty):

• the Rehobllitalion Ad of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohblts redplents ol Federal firancial
assblence from dbchmlneting on the basis of lability, in regard to employmont ortd the dethrory of
services Of benefits; in any program or edlvity.

• the Americarw with Oisabi'iiios Ad of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohWts
diicrlminotlon ond onoures equal opportunity for persons with disabilfiies In employmeni. Stale end local
govemme'ni services, public occonvnodelionB. comme/dal facilrtlos. ond tronsportatiort:'
• the EducatiortAmendmenti of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sectiono 1661.1683. 166S-66). wh'chp/ohbr^
discrimination on the basis of sex In federally assisted education programs:

• me Age Docrimtnatton Acl ol 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). whkh prohbhs drscximlnatton on me
basis of age .in programs or actrviiios receiving Foderqi financial ossistance. It does not include,
emptoymanl dlschmlriatton;

. 28 C.F.R. pt. 3'1 (U.S. Depertrrwnt of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 26 C.F.R..p!. 42 •
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulotiohs - Nor>discrimlruillon: Equal Employment Opportunity: policies..
and Proc^ures): Executive Order No. 13276 (equal protection of (he laws for faith-based end comrnunity
orgahlzetioml); Exaculiye Order No. 13559. which provide fundamentel prindplas and poUcymaXIng
crtiwla for partnerships with (silh-based ond noighborhood organfaentiono:

• 28 C F R. pL 36 (U.S.'Deportment olJustee RegulaHons - Equal TreotmonMor Fofth-eaoed
OrganiziJlions): and WhisUebtowor protedion# 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The Notional Defense Authorfealion
'M (NDM) for Fhcai Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2.20i 3) the Pifot Progrnm for
Enhancwen'i of Conlrad Empb^ Wftishrtfdwer Protaaor«. which prolecu employeos ̂air«t .
reprisol tor certain vrhlstis blowing ectiviiieo In connection with federal grants and ca'mraM.'

. The cerOficaie sai out belbw Is a malsrla) represaniation ol fad upon which reliance is placed when tho .
ogsr>cy ovrards tho grant. Fofse oortiflcation o' viotatlor) ol (he certifcellon shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or govornmorq wide euspcnsion or
dobormerti.

GthMC /vy .
V«nOor IfiftlstJ (tm

riWii>iiiiriiipii'nimfinnrrmi>ri'—or'mT""' —-i . •
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A' r •

,  In the event a Federal Of Siato court or Fodofol Of Side odminjalfaiiveegoncymaKesB findinQ of
.. . aft«8.dirtpfoceMhMrlr>g on the grounds of race. cotof.rdtQion. national oriain. Of sex

^lml8fecipientoffund«,lher6crp«entwilirorwafdecopyofthefindingtoiheOfficofpfXM).Right# to ••••
Ino appiwable.'conirectinfl ogoncy Of divtaion within the D^ftmern of Heaiui end Himar> Servkaa arid-
to ̂ Oepartment of Heofthord Human Servtcos Office of the OmtXKlSfna#^.

♦  • • ■^^"V®'^<^W^f>edinS:edlon1.3ofmdGenefaiPfovisiOfisagf8eaby6i0naiunBcfthaConifBctor's

*• I.- By elgnlnoefKlaubrnfttinQlhlftpfopoMKoontract) the Vendor agrope to comply wiin the provfeioha •
.  indcated above.

■ vendofName: AfU •
. ^U./iSt>/0rS . -

Date . ^me;
Title

t

i

.Jr.i «

V:

■<

♦  ► '

.  ̂ • ». r. .

V  ̂ f,., ,
'  •• :t *, •' . . ■ >

"  * ' EthMG, -'>'// -y'^^ vvi

FafiBZer? .■ Paia ^ ' ■

't'

!. ,
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CERTIFICATION REQAftPIMG EMVlROflMENTAL TOBACCO SilQKg

Public tow 105-227. Port C • EnvlronmenloJ Toba^ SmoXo. ebo known'es ihe ProrChlWren Act of 1994
(^). requlroa-l^l smoking not bo pormrtted In any portion ol.any Indoor lodliiy owned or teased or .•/.
contracted fo/ by on ertitty end rouilnoly or regylorly for tho provlelon of hooldi, doy core, ̂ucotJcn
or library aorvtoea to children tmd.or the age of 18. H the services ore funded byFoderaJprpgrama ellher
direcdy or through State or local governments, by pedorol ̂ enl, contrecl. loon, v loon guaranioo. The
law does no< apply to .^lid/on's cervices provWod In prtyate residences, fedlilies fu'ixled 5iO'ely by

^ ■ Medicare or Medted.d .hinds,. end portions of lediitios used lor Inpatient drug or alcohol ue^enl.' feilurp
.10 comply with the provisions of the tew may resuil in tho Imposition of o civft mor^etcry penalty of up to.
$1000 per day ertd/or the imposiUon of on adrrilnairetive co^ianoe order on responsible enOty.-

,Tho Vervlcr tdenlifiod In Section 1.3 of tho Gorioral ProvtoionB ogreeo. by algr>eturo of ihe Conlroctor'#
rdpreeeniaiive'ea.idqntdladih Section l.it and i.l2oftheGonoralProvisIone. to execute the following
cortificadoh:

t. fly Signing and. su.bminJng this contract, the Vendor egrees to make rcasonaWBeffcris to comply wllh
enoppjipabie prowls o.f Public.L8w.t03:227. part C. krwvw) as ihe.f?ro-ChIlditen Aci.of.1994..

.  f

•i ii

Date 1

Vendor Name: /f/// I DrAj: ^ . .

" cuiCH<s^ion>

ExhlbA H - CerbfoUon ReganUi^
- Envhonnwid Tobom Smokt

Page i of 1

Vendo* InibaU

Dit4
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HEALTH INSURANCE POWTABIUrTY
ACTBUStMESSASSOCtATE

agreement

The Vendor (n Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of tho Aereemenl asreesJo - •
comply wtth ̂  Health (neurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Lew 104-191 .and .
with 'ti^ Stenidards for Prtvacy and Security of Individually idenUflable. Health Intormatidn, 45
CFR Parts 160 erxl 164 applicable to business associates. .As defined herein, 'Suslness
Assodato' ehiail mean the Vendor and eubcontractors and egents of the Vendor that rocetve.
use.or-'have aceoee to protected health information under this Agreement and.'Covofcd {ErStity*
shell mean the State of New. Hampshire. Department of Healih and Human Sendees.

(r; -'" PflflnitiQna.
8. 'Breach* shall heye the same meaning as the term *Breach' in sccOor> 1.64.402 of Titie 45,

Code of Federal Regulatlorts.

b. 'Business Associate* has the meaning given su^ term in_8^]on 160.103 of Title 45. Code
■•■*'"dfiFede>"diReguldti6ns''*"'".' .v .;v^

•  i-

c. 'Covered Entity' has the moaning given such term in sectrcn 160.103 of Title 46.
Code of F.efderal Regulations.

d. 'Destonaled Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record eet'
in 45CFRSe.Ctjon 164.501.

e. 'Data AaorcQation* shall have the same meaning as the term 'data eggregation' in 45 CFR
i  . Section 164.501/ ' ■

f. "*i4efllth Care Operations' shall have tho same moaning as the term "health caro operaliono"
=. .lh45.CFRSe'ction164.501. ■

p. - ."HITECH Act' mcans the Health Inlorrnolion Technology for Economic end Clinical Health
Act. TKleXIII. Subtitle D. Part 1 6 2 of tho American Recovery end Reinvestment Ad of
2009. . ' ^

h. rneans the H^lih Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law ,
104*191 and the Standards for Privacy and So^rity of Individually Identifiable Health

_  Information. 45 CFR Parts 160, -162 and iSd an'd ameodrTTenis (hereto.

I. "Individuar shall have the seme meaning as the term 'individual' in 45 CFR ^ption.160.103
and shall fndudo a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFRSect!On16|4:501(g). ' . " : ' .

J. 'Prtvacv Rule' shell mean the Siandards for Privacy of.lndivkluaily Identrfiable-Heallh ;
Infpnmptipri at 45 'CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgeted under HIPAA by'the tjnited States' .
DepaHmenl Of Health and Human Services.

k; 'Projected hjealth Information' shall.have the same meaning as the term 'protected health;. . ' .
"inform.aUori'.in 45 CFR Section. 160.103, limited to.tho informallon created pr rocejved by

■. ■■Busihe'si^'sociato from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ^ ^ , .
>7014 - EinWil / VanSftrtntob •'

,  Hftallh Hsinnco Pwtstriily Ad .
..I 8uairt«o Aii»od»*# A^ro«ni«nl A

}■ .Paesicrs .... Dau» ^ ^
k. I*'* '' r<--!
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''' \ ' ■ . EvhIbHI

). /RflQulred.bv Law' shtfl hava the same mBanina as the lerm 'fBQulfed bv lav/ in 4S CFR • ' • ,
So60<>o'1S4."103; • .

;  rn. 'Secreterv'sholl mean the Seaetary of Iho Department of Health end l^uman Services or • ^
■ hls/^er'desighee.

.  n. ••Securitv Rute' ehallrriean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and smer>dments.thereto..

o.. 'UnsecOred Protected Health Informatjon* means protected heaUh lnformadon thqt.ta riot
- . -"' Mi^red by e technology standard that randars protected .health Information unusable. - -

unre8dable. .or Ind^pherable to unauthorized tndtviduals and is deveiopiki or end6rse|d by
a Gtandardo-deveioping organizaticn.lhei is accredited by the Amen'can Naliorial.Standards .
Institute. • ?

p. Other Definitions - All lemts not otherwise defined herein ehall have jhe meaning^' ^ ^ .
estabi]sni£KJuKddlii5C.F.R" p0rts""16O.'l62 end 164". asermsnded from tiiw 7

"HITECH" . ■

(2) Buslr^eoa Assoelsfte Uea and Disclosure ol Protected Health Inforrhfltlon. "

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transrnit F^tecled Health
Inforrnstion (PHI)'6KC8pt as reasonably necessary- to provide the services ouUiried under '

.  ; Exhibli.A of ;the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, induding but no! iimitdd to all •
.Its jdirectOTB. ofBttrs. employees ond agents, shall not use, discloao, rhaJnlain or transrnit
PHI inianymanner that would constitute 8 violation of the Privacy er^ Security Rule. • ..

b. . Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
1. For the jyopermanagemant and BdministrBboh of the Business Associate;

.  II. As required by t^. purauani to the terms set forth in paragraph <|.-bek>v)r; or -
III. >F6rdalaegorega(ionpurpoGesfortheheatthcerooperation6of.Cdvor6d

..Entity.

c. • ■ To Iho extent Business A^oclate Is permitted unde'r the Agreement to .dispose PHI to a ■
third porty. Bueineaa Aeac^ate must oMain. prior to moking ony euch dledoeure,,',(l)
reasonable .assurances from the third party (hat such PHI will be hold-confidentially.-artd
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for lt>e purposb for. .vriiich .It-ws.
disclosed to the thl^ party; and (ii) an agraerr^ent from such third party to riotify Business .- ••
.Assodatei. In accordance wtth Ihe HIPAA Privacy; Security, and 8ro^ Ndlifl.cation •

. Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of Ihe PHI. to the extent it has obtained
:  kr>ov^ge of such breach.' • ' .

d. The Business i^sodete shall not, unless such disclosure is reasortably necessary to
provide eeivicw underExhiblt A ̂ the Agrecm.erit. disclose.any PHl in response to.ii

•  request for disdowre on the basis that it Is f^uired by law. wlihout firsfnotlfytng;
i  Covered .Entity 50 thbt Covered Entity has en opportunity to objed to the disdo^re end '

to SMk appropriale relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Buslrtess >

M— .
Kftdh InaonnoB norutsiiry
RuorAe»AMoe'eiiAgrtemert P-

»»K*Jor6 DaU.O
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Associale shall refreln from disclosing PHI uniiicovofod Entity has exhausiod 'e!)
remadiw.

' h '
■  B. If fheCoveredEnllty notifies the Business Associate thet Covered Entity has sgfi^ to. '

bo bound Ijiy a'ddtttonai resihctions over and above those uses of disclosures or iocudty !.. -i
safeguards of PHI pureuent to the Piivdcy and Security Rule.'the Busings Assbdaie" -

. eholl bo bound by such BdditMoal restrictions and shell not dtsdoso PHl in vtolatioh of

such odditlonel restrtc^ons and shall eblde by any additlonaJ security, safeguards.'' "

(3) . ObltaaMofw end Adhmiee of Bualneea Aaaoclato.

a. The Business Assopale shall notify the Covered Entity's Privecy Officer Imrhcdiately
after the 6usir>fisa Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected.
'health Information not provided for by the Agraament Inciuding tresches.of unsecured

, prtplected health information end/or. any security mcident that rriay have en Impact on the
—  '-protected heallh-infooTt^onoftheCover^ Errt'ty; - -"""'T

b. The Buslr>oas Assodate shall immediately perform a risk aseossment when It-becomes
aware Of any of the above Situations. Theri&kessessment eholliridude, bulhot be
limited to:

o Tho.noturc end orient of iho protected health Ir^formaliori Invoived. ifKiuding,the :
' typies of Identifiers end the likeGhood of re-identif^tion;

, 0- The'unauthorlzod person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o- tVhether the protected health irifonmalion was actually acquir^ or viewed
0  The extent which the risk to the protected health Information has been

rnltigated.

The Businosa Associate ehpil compieie tho risk-assessment within.46 hours of the ;?
breach and immedlatdy re^ the fir^dings of the risk assessment In writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The BuSneas Associate shall comply with all sections of tho Privacy. Security, and
Breach Nptiflcalion Rule.

d. Business Associate ehati make evaiiebfe ell of Its internal policies and prodedures, books --
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or

-received by the Business Associate on behalf Of Covered Entity to tho Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA end the Privacy end
So^rityRule. • ^

e. BOs'tness Associate-shall require all of Its buuness essodates that receive, use.or have.
. access tp PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to tho somo '

restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI conieined herein, including -
the duty to return 0( destroy the PHI as provkJod under Section 3 (I). The QoverediEntlty
-shell be cbn^dered a direct third party benefidary of the Contractor's bu.sln^ essodale
egreemen.ts with Conlrador's Intended business associates, who wfli-b'e receiving PHI..

aoou ^ - e>Kuii " vwiOQfinw'Ba jMil.'
■  - HcaTMnjumce PataMtty Art •'

Suilmn AoocUti • O lJkxArL>\
r'.- ■; V • ■ P«043d6 .Orti
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pursuant to this Agreement,-with righ.ts of ©nfofcemcrrtsnd in'demntficalion from such ■
business essodates who Shell Oe governed by atanderd Peregraph tfO of the standard

'. ".v contrect proviaipns (P-37) of this Agroomont for purpose of use and disclosure Of . •
■ prpiecl^, health Information. . .

f. • ■ Wilhiri flv(p (5)business days of receipt of a whtlen request from Covered Entity... . ■
; ■ Guslnea.s Associate shall make available during norme) busine.ss hours iat its ofT)^ ell
- records; books., agreements, poiiclra arxl procedures relatir>g to the use and'discfosure
^ . of PHI to'the Covered. Entity, for purpoeea Of enabling Covered Entity to det^mlne

• Busiriess Associate's compliance with the terms Of the Agreement.

g. • "Within ten (10) business deys of reccivfr>oa.wrinen request from Covered Er>lity.
-.Busineiss Associate .shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, .or as directed by Covered.Entity. to an Individual in order tc.meet the

•. requirements under 45 CFR Se^n'164.524.

h . . WIthln.ten (10) business days of raving q wrtnen request from Covered Entity for an
" ■■ flmjW^mont'of.PHlV'erec^'abou'tOTIriffivldualwnialne'dln"a*De^^ '

Srt. (He ̂ slhass Associate shall make such PHI avaiiebie to Covered Entity (or - " --' J;
. emet>dmienil end'incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity Ib'fulfiH.tls'
obli^tioos under 45 (iFR Section 164.520.

i. . Business'Assbciate.shell document such di.sctosures of PHI end information reiated to
-81^ di^osures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by.art' ■
in^vldua] for an eccountino of disclosures of phi in eccordance with 45 CFR Section

J. • ■ . WlUnin. t^ (10) business days of receMng a wntten request frorn Covered Entity for a->
. request for ah ecoouniing of disdosures of PHI. Business Associate shall.make evailiibte

i: ; to Covered Entity such (nformalion as Covered Enllty may require to fulflirrtsobllgaijons.
lo.provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance' with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k': ' In the overit eny individual requests eocess to. amendment'of. or accounting ol PHI
direcOy from tho Business Associate, the Business Assodale ehall within two (2)
business deys forward such request to Coveted Entity. Covered Eritity shall have the

• r©spor\8ibili.ty of responding to fbrworded requests. However, l.f forwarding the
InblvidusFs-request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity.-.or the Business; '
Assodete to violate HIPAA and the Pfivecy and Security Rule. U)e Business'Assod,ale- -
S.hell Instead respond to tho Individual's request es required by such law end riotity '' -
'C^^ed Entity of such response es soon 06 practicable.

t. - yvithin ten (10) busj.ness .days of tenninaiion of the Agreement, for any reason, the .
-Busirms.AksodBte shall return or destroy, 86.epeofied by Covered Entity, aDPHI "

'~ recpived fnyn, dr'cr.eated or received by Business Aesoc'iale in cdnnecOon with the
-Aoreerhef^t. and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI.'If return or •
destruction is not feasible, Of the dispdsltkW) of the PHI has been otherwiee tb-in
the Agreerrient, Business Assodate she!) continue to extend the protectioris of the

=■"'Agreerpent, tqsu^PHi and limitfu.itherusesand disclosures Of fiuch.pHl.tolhos'e-
purposes^lhat make the return or destruction Infeasible, for sb long as Business ' ■

ihoH EievMi _
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Assjxi^tom&lntflln9Suc^>HI. If Covered Entity, in i(s eote discretion,-reqOlres.thdl the
' BuslnessAssodetedestrbyBnyorall PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to

■ Covered Entity thet the PHI has been destroyed.

(4).: ObUqattone cf Covered Entrtv .

a. Covered EnUty shall notify Business Associate of any changes ot iim(tation(e) In He "
' Notice of Privacy Practices provided 10 individuais in eccordence with 45 C.FR Sectioh ■
'  164.520, to the extent that eud^ change or Itmllation may affect Businesa Assoclate'e
...• u.se or tfisdosure" of PHI.

b. . Covered Entity GhaO prompUy notify Business Associate of any changes in..or revocation'
of pemtisslon provided to Covered Entity by indrviduafs whose PHI nnay bo used or - -
disclosad by Budnose Associate under this Agroement, pursuant to 45 CFft Section

■  .164.506or45CFR Action 164.508. • -

c..: Cpvamd entity shall prbmpUy notify Business Associate of any resections on the use ov
-  of th'e't'Cbver'ed Erititv has'adfee'd'lo In accordanco with'bS C'FR 164.522.

to the axTenl that Vuch rasthction may affect Business Assodale's use or dlsctosSSa of
PHI.

.(5) • .Termlnetlon fcr Cause

In addition to Paraoraph 10 of the standard :emns and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may tmmed'iaicly lerminaie the Agreement upon Covened
Entity's knowfedgeiof a breach by Business Associate of the Business Assadate
Agreement eet forth heroin os Exhibit I. The Covorod Entity may either Imrnedletely

.  terminate the Agrcerhent or provide an opportunity for Business Assodale to cure lhe. '
ellaged.breach within a timefreme specified by Covered Enlily. If Covered Entity.

. determl/Ms that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall repo'iH'Che
vidab'on to the Secretary.

f6) Miecellaneouft-

a. Definitions and Reoulalorv References. All tcrrns used, but not cihcrwlso dcflrved herein,
-shall have the same meaning as those temis In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
fmirh linie to. lime. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to indude this. Exhibit.!,-to
. a Sectlpn .jn the Privacy er>d ̂ curily Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. Amentiment. Cov.erad Entity and Busineso Associate agree to take such ection.es Is
■nece^ry to emend the Agreement, from time to time as is r^ocassary for Covered
Gnlily to oompfy wHh the ch3r>9CS In the requirenwnls of HiPAA. the Phvacy.and
Security Rule, end-applicab.lo federal and slate law.

c. Data Ownership. The Busiriess Associate acki>owl6dges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or creeled on behetf of Covered Entity. •

d. Interpretation. The parties agree lhai any ambiguity In the Agraemenl shall l:w..resoIved.
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule." .

EjtftbSi < tfVOal*Vt014
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Sflafftflflbon. if BTty term or condition of U>r3 Etfiihll I o< the spplication thereof lo eny
p6rson(8) or drcumctanco is hold Inveild. such invalidity aheO not ofroct other toimo or
condWons which con bo given offed wlihout the Invalid term or oondtUon; to this end the
terms end conditions of thHs Eidtibit i ero dotiorod dovorabie.

Survival. Provietons In thb EihlbH I roDanllng the use end dlsdosure of PHI, rotum or
desVucdon of PHI, extensions of iho protections of the Agroomoni in section (3) I, mo
defense end indemntflcelion provUlons of section {3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
etertderd terms er^ conditions (P'37), ehoO survive ihe ternrlnation.of the AgreemenL

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partlos hereto have duly executed this Exhibit i.

Oaportrrxem c( HecRh and Human Servtoee
The State

n
Slgnaturo of Authodzod ReproMniailve

NemedwthofUed Repredmiatlve

Title of Authohzed Repreoontative

Date '

fjtK/^uj6rA
„ Name of me Vondot^'

Signature of Authortzed ReptsenlaUve

Name of Authorized Repreoonioiive

AoCrii
Title of Authorized Representative

?-*/ 2010
Dale .

soou ZftiMI
Mftlth InuTsncs Ptfti^ Szt

Auodilt A4rw0>«r«
pifi«fofe

V«ndar bvUjti iil—
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CKRTIFfCATIQN'REGAROiNQ •T>4E.FEDCRAL^UMD1MG ACCQUHTABJLJTY AND TRAWSPAftENCy
'ACTffFATmCQMPUAMCE

TKe Federal Fundi^ AccoumaWliiy end Trens^roncy Aci (FF AT A) require) prime awftrdeee ot (ndMdue)
Federol oronb equel'to or greater than S?S.OOO'and awardad on or after October 1. 2010. to r^n on
data rotated to execmivo oompertiatjoo and aaaociaiod fnt-ber out^^ms of'$2S.OOO or mo/b. (f the' -
.InJflal award la peJow $25,000 bvrt eutoeguonl grant rnodlftcatlons re)uU In a total award equal-tO or over
$25,000. iHe e^d U subfeet to the FFATA roportino roquiremonla. as of the dote of the oword.
In occordanoe w1ib,2,CFR Part 170 (RoportinB Subaward and ExoctrtJvo CdmpensatJon (nformatlon), the
Ddpartmcnl of Health and Human Sorvlcea (DMHS) mu8i report (he foltowtng infwmadofi for any

■ cubaward or bontrect sward eub^ to the FFATA reporbngrequiremenU; ' '
1. Nemeof'orrtjry
2. A/noiait of award
3. Funding agency.
4-. NAlCScodeforcontracto/CFOAprogramnumbefforgr^nia
5." Progmm bouVco ..
6. Award tfUedascrfpUvo of the pu/poso of the funding action
7. Location ol thai eniiiy
8. . Prindple.plficeofparfonmanca. _ ... . ..i. ..

, 0. Unique identifier.of.the.orrtlty (OUNS 0)...... . " '. j'
10. Total cempenulion'arid names of the top five executivd) if:

10.1; More than 80% of arviual grou ravenues are from the Federol'govemment. end those
revenues are graatar than $2SM annually and

10.'2. ^mpematicn.lnformaticnisnotot'ftadyavailablelhroughreponingtotheSEC. '

Prime gram roclplonis must womtl FFATA required data by the end of the mohlh. plus 30 doya. in which,
thc.ewsnj or oword omondmbni ic rnadb.
Thb Vondof.ldcnlWbd in Sectior. 1.3 of the General Pruvlslortf agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Fuhdng ApcbuniaWlity end Transparency Act. Public Low 109-202 end Public Low 110-252.
end 2 CFR Perl 170 (Reporting Subaward er*i Executha Compenwiion inforntaljon). aiKl.further agrees
to have .the Cotilfdctdr's representative, asidentifled in Sections l.l.i and 1.l2'ofthoGBnefe) Provisions-
execute the fpl'lowlno.Certr^Uon:
T.he't>dbw rutmed.Vendor-agraeB to provide needed information as outtinad obovo to the NH Oepartmont ..
of Health end Human.Servtces 'end to comply with all applicable provlaiorts of the Federal Finondoi
Acoountebilit^' ond Transparency Act.

Dale

Vendor Name:

Name;

.Eeilbil J - C«n[f>c*l'on fUQtrtfhg Uw F«do(«l Fwndkrtg
Aoceuntabiliiy And Trencpercncy Ad (FFATA) C«rps«nc«

Pxgftlol}

UeAda< iMiUlj(£i--
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fom(\ ■ -

■ As Iho Vendor idonlifiod In Soction 1.3 of U>e Gonoral Provisions, I certify thai Iho rosponsos tO| thO'
listed quiMilons ore true and eccuraie. _ "

1. The DUNS number for-your onlity is

2. In your business or orgenlzstfon's prooeding completed riscal year, did your businsM Of organization
receive (i) 60 ̂cer>l or more ofVour annual grou revenue (n U.S. federa) contracts. stJboontrects,
loans, grantg. Gub-grenls. ond/or cooperative egreemer^ts; end (2) $25,600,000 or-'more.ln ennuai - '

-  grossreyenuosfrornU.S. federal conlracta. subcontracts, loans, grenls.subgrant^ and/or • ■ ■
cooperative agfeernenis?

y NO YES

If the anawer to W obovo Is NO. fitop here

•' If the ansv«r to fl2 aboye Is YES.-pteaso answer the Wlowng;

3.Xdow^o public.havd.eccoaa ipinlormolion about t^».compcA4alian.o^.thoa*eaJByts.in.your .',
business Of prganlzallon.lhrou^ periodic roports fUad under Motion 13(6) or l$<d) of the Securities

■ -i Exchange-Act of 1634 (i6U.S.C.78m(a), 76^d)) or section 6104 of the Inlamal Revenue C6de of .
.1988?' . r

• NO -YES

11 the answer to tf3 above Is YES. stop here

If the.enswer.tob3.above Is NO. please answarihe following:

4. The names end compensation of (he fiyo most'highly compensated officers in your business or
ofganiiation or© as follows: - . ' '

Nome:

•Name:

Nerrie:

Name:

Nemo:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

.. cuowuini

EihibH J-CeriifiC4ljonfteoardhBU«Fodo4) Funding
Acoounubdiy And Tf«r«petncy Ad (FFAFa) Ccmplznca

P«0*2o'2
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DHHS Information Security Roquiremente

'.A- iDefinHiofis:

■ The following lefms may be reflecied end have the described meaning in this document:

,  T ■ "Sreech* means .the loss of control, comp/omise. unauthorized disckwore. •
. unauthorized-eoquisition, uneulhcxized -aocess, or any stmilar term referring .to

'  situations where parsons, other tTran euihorued users end for an other than
authorized purpose rrave access or potent/^ access to personally.Identifiable

• mformellon, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health-
—infomi'ailon.' Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term'Broach* in aeclion
liM.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2.. 'Comixrtcr Security Incident' shall have the same meaning 'Com^ler Security
Incideni' ln aection two (2) of-NlST-Pubtication 600-61.; Computer Security,-InchJent —•

• HarxJWng-Guide.-National lnstfTutB"Df"Sfand8rds and Technoiogy;"U:S.-Oepartmenl""'"
of Commerce.

• • • 3. ."ConfidentijJ informaiion'. or •Ccnfjdeniial Oala' means alt confidenlial .'information
. disclosed-by one party to-the other such as alt medical, health; futanobi." public ■ '

y osststance benefits and piersonal information Including without limitation. Substance . -.
; ■ • Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Infqrmadbn ; arid- ;

. Person^ly 'jdenlifiable Information.

"  Conridentiel Irrformetlon elso incKidos any and .ell information ownod or managed by
;  HH • created, received from or on behalf of the Departmeril of Health and • "

-Hurrian Servic«. (OHHS) or ecce^d In the course of pertormlng contraded
services - of vrtiich' coiiecb'on, d.isciosure. protection, and disposition rs got^med by
stale or fedcral law or repulalion. This informaiion incfudea. bul is. no1 limlled io

- Protected Health information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Informelioo.(PFl), Federal Tax Information (FTi), Soda) Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card ifKluslry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Informaiion. -

4.. 'End User' means any person or entity (e.g., oontractor. contractor's employee,
■ busineu asopcleio, fr̂ ddccnu-actor. other downstream, user, • etc.) that receives
.OHHS.datd or derivative data in accordence with the terms of this Contract.

5. !HIPAA*-means the Health Insurance Portability 8r>d AocountabHity Ad of 1996 and the
ri^ulations promulgated thereunder.

6. ''mcidenr mearte an act that potentially violate^ en ei^ldt or implied eecority policy,
which Indudes eWempls (either failed or successful) (o gain unauthorized ac6^ to a .
system or Its data, urtwamed disruption of denial of service, the unauthorized u^ of.

■ 8 system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to eyatem hardvrare; ;. .;
, flrmwam, or software characlerfstics without the crvvheris knowledgo. ln9injciior),.gr -
.' consenL Ino'dpnls ihdude (he loss of data-through theft or de^ce misplacement; loss
or mi'spfacement of hardcopy documents, and mlsrouting of-physical .or electronic- ";.'

V5.-I^U0dzts IMWIS ' EjMW.K Cv«rKtiy Iniksts (M . .
OHHS InrermeOcn

iv;; • Se^ut^lrRal^^r«mwtl ' • Q <J'
Papoiors

.[•>. vM'; ' j
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.  DHHS Information Security Requirements

.maB, ell of which may hav© the poJenlial to put the dete et risk, of wnaulhohxod "
acoosa. use, d'sdosoro. modification Of destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Nolwork* means any oaiwortt or segmoni oT a nelWOrX thdt'iS
not designated by .the State of New. Hampshire'c" Deportment of Ir^forrnotioo
Technolooy or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested...and"
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be. considered .an open- ..
network and .hot adequately secure for the transmission of unehavpted Pl PFl
PHI or confidential DHHS date.

8. 'Pefsonal Ifrfo^ation' (or 'PI') means informaf^ which can be used to distirjguich..
. or trace en indrviduaVo identity, such as their name, social security numbe/. poraonai
intonation as defmed in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. Womatric records, etc..

•"* —veiohe. or .when cjomblrted wfih other personal or.ldentrfymgtnformatior) wtdch-Is inked

• name. etc. ..
•  • I

9. ■ 'Pfiva^ Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of tndMdualiy Identifiable. Health
Information at 45.C.f.R. Parts 160 erxl 164. promulgeted under HiPAA by the United . - '
Slates Oepartmcni of Health and Human Servlcas.

.  I • . « • ' • *

.-10. 'Protected Health Information' (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided in the
dermltibft of 'Protected Health Infohmation* in the HIPAA Privacy Rule el 45 6 F R- 6 •
1607i03: ' ■ ;v

•  ,• * * * I

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Irtformaiion el 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subparl C. arid" emendrnenis
thereto. -

12. "Unsecured. Protected Health Inlofmaiion'' means Protected Health Infofrnation that te "
not secured by a technology standard thai rendcfs Protected Health Infor^lion ..

..uriusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthortzed IndMdull's and - Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is acaedrtecl by. :>•
the"Amertcen Nelional Standards Insilhne. . . .

I. RESPONSIBlLinES OF OHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Uso.erKJ Disclosu/e of Confidential IfTformatlon.

■  .1., Tho-ContratSor must nofuso. disclose, mainloin or Irprismit Confidential.Information
■  6xocpt 03 reasonably r>eces&ary as outlined undcr this.Contract. Further, Contrabtor.
^Including but not ilmttcd to airiis dlroctors, offlcers, employees and agents, must not ;

••• •use.'diE.dose.mainielnortrensmitPHlinanymannerthatwouJd cohsiiluledvlolaUon
of the Privacy and Securt^ Rule.

t ; 2. The Contractor rrujsl not disdoso any Confidanlial trdorma.tion in response to a ^

VS-t^UxWoieWIS 'EtfitilK -Cor«ncUyln^i 0: - ■ ■ ■ :
OHMS InJcnnalim .. • i"-

V I. • I S»cvMrr Roqw^uuiftU Oj/
;t • ' P»g«Sbr.B ObUi , i
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D.HHS Information Security Requirements

•'(1 •"

requeS:! fw disclosure on the basis ihel it is required by. law,- in-response lo e .i'- '
•.oubpoene, etc.. witl^l first notifying OHHS so that DHHS has en bpppf^niiy..tp "„

■  dori.aent or-objed lo the disclosufe. . . * •! '
'••3. If OHHS hoUfies the Contractor that ,DHHS has agreed to be bound by addliiw.q] "

.  .re^cUow over end above (hose uses or disclosures or security s^eguarde of PHj
pursuant to (he Prtvacy and Security Rule, (he Coniractof must, be twund by such
additional, restrictions-, and must ■•not disdoso PHI In vlbiflUpn d j|U9h additional
restrictions end mustebide by any additional secu.rrty safeguards. •

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or dertvative there from disdosod to on End
Usor must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Coniracl.

5. .the Contractor agrees OHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
PjfPSSsesIfiafere not ^

"6. "-The Contrector. egrees to grant access to tho'data •toiha'authDdzBd repraserftathw' ""'"*• "
. orOHHS for the purpose of mspecling to confirm compliance wllh Ihe.terms of this •

Contract. . ■ ,V '."

II. ..METHOOS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

.  ..1 Applicetion Encryption. If End-User Is iransmitli.ng DHHS data ■ conialning
rCohfidentlal D"a^ befwoen applications, the Contractor attests the appllcaiiohs have -0- '

.  -bee,n-evaluated by an expert. knoNVledgeable in cyber secu'rlty-pod th.aii'Sold
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure i/ensmlsslon vla the iniernet. .v" ' ''

2. Computer Disks and.Podable Storage Devices. End tJser may hot um computer .disks .
of portablestbragedevices. suchBSBthumb.drive. as .a malhodof transmrttlrifiDHHS ■
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data tf '•
• • email Is ehcfvDted ond being cent to arid being received by-email addresses of

persons authoftt'ed to receivo auch'lhformeiion.
Ericrypted -Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidenila!
Dala.' .the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used end the web site niusi be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

4.

5..". File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use .file
..hosUng servioes, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to' transmit
ConOdential Oala. ' ■ •

6. Ground MaH Service. End User may only transmit ConfidenlicU Dala via cerf/ffotf grouhd-
meirwithin ihfrcontinental U.S. and when sen! to 6 named individuBl.

7. Laptops end PDA. If End User is employing portable devices .to 'transmit
.. Confidential Date'said devices must be encrypted end passwofd-pr.olected. ' " '■

8. Open .Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidenijai Data via an -operi.

vs. LMl upCfta 10109ns Ca«vocirinl&sh ■
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wireless r>etwort<. End User must employ a virtual -private netwoA (VPN) when
remotely trananutting via an open wireless f>etwort(. -• •• - •

9. Rernpte User Communication. If End User is employing r.emote commuhl^tion to
access , or tr^mit Confldenlial Data, a virtual private networit .(VPN) must be"

•  Installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

.10. SSM File -Trensfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End -User Is employing an SFTP to iransmii Confidential Data. End User 'wHl
etnjrture the Folder and access prtvlieges to preveni Ineppropriaie tfsclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Cionfidentiel Data "will
be coded for 244iour auto-deJetion cycta (i.e. Corrfidential Data will be deleted every 24

_hpyj5). ... ,
11rvyirBiess".Oey1oes.-lt Ert.dUser Is IransmlWng Confldentlal Data via wlreiess"dev1ce5. an ':
•  be encrypted to preventlnapproprtatedlscSosufe of Informaiiori..

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF iOENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The.CbotrBhor.wittonly retain the dale arxJ any derivaUva Of the data fof the di/ralion pf this ■
■Conlrad. After such time, the Conireclor will have 30 days to destroy the data end-any ■
dertvalTve In wtiatevcr form It may ft itisl. unless.-otherwise required by law or pemiltted
under this Contract. To this endi the parties must:

A. Retehuon

•  1. The Contractor agrees II will rxil store, transfer or process date'collected In
.  connecOon. whh the services rendered under this Contract outside of the Unlt.ed

.States. This phydcal tocallon requirement shall also apply .in the Implementalibn .of •
dpod wmpuOng. doud service or doud etorago capabilities. ar>d Includes backup "
dale and DIsester Recovery locations. •

2. The.Contractor agrees to ensure proper'security monitoring""capabUltiec ore In .
• place to detect potential secuHty events that can im^ct Stato of NH Bysi.qm'a

end/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.
3. The CiontrBctof agrees to provide aecurity awarertess and education for .its End

.  Userstnsupjxirt.ofpmtoctingDepartmentconfidenlialinfofmation.
• v. • Tho Controdor ogrces to retain ell electronic arxj hard copies of Confidenlial Data

■  Ifi a secure location end identified in.section IV. A.2
5.. The Contractor ogreos Confidenlia! Dale stored in a Ci.oud must be In 9

FcdRAMP/HITECH Dompliani solution and comply with at) applicable siatutOs and
• j rogylations regarding the privacy and security. All sofvers and devices-must hpvev-; , ^rrenlly-supported end hardened operating systoms. the latest" ahU-yiral. "anlh-'

Hflcker,.anti-spam, pnii-spyware, and enli-matwarc utilities. The environrneht. as d

vs.Lesiup4»i« itfOOni eiMWK Cor<JKtviraw$
.  .- DMHSWoonabft
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• whole, must have aggressive Intriision-ijelectlon and firewall protection.'

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the Stale's
Chief Information Offrcef In the detection of any security vulnerBblllty of the hwting
Infrastructure.

•B. .Disposition

1. If the Contractor will mainiain any Confidential Infortnaiion on Hs systems <ar lis •
' - sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will mfilniair> a documented process for.

aecurety disposing of. such data upon request of contract termination: "and will
obtain wrinen certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the '
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency^ and Of "disester •

—recovery opefettons.-When no lbf*gof In usereiectronic medla-contathlng-StBte of-
•  Neyv>fampshlre~datff'shfln barendCTOd unrecoverab)© via.a 6o"cure'w<pe""plbgf^

.  In ecco»dance with industryiaccepied standards for secure deletion and media-'
eanHinitton, or otherwise physically destroying the m^la.- (for. example,

'degaussing) as described in NIST Spedal Publicati(y> fi00-8d. Rev. t. Guidelines •'
for Media ^nlUiatton. NaiionaJ Institute oi Standards end Technology. U. S. •

.. Dopaitment of Commerce. The Contractor wtll document aryf cedify In yrrlling at
tirho of the data destruction, and will provide wdnen ceitiflcatlon'to the Dopa/tmeht'
Oppn • request. The written cenificetion will indude ail details .neoe^ry to

, demonstrate data has been proparly dest/pyed ar^ validated. Where <eppticabie,''
regulatory end professional standards for retention requirement will be jointly
eveiuBted by the State'and Coni/ador prior to destruction.

2. • Unless othervn^se specified, wiihhn thirty (30) days of ih© le^lnatfon ol this' '
Contract. Conlrector ̂ rees to destroy all fiard copies of CGnfidentJat Data using e .
secure n^hod such 85 shredding. , _ .

3../Unless otherwise -specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this "-
;  Confrad. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all eledr^c Confidential Data - =

by means of data erasure, also known as secure data «^pang.

IV. PAOC^bURES FOR SECURITY r ' .y
.  . I , •

A-'-COfllraclor agrees to cofeguard the OHHS Dole rooeived under this Contract, ertd any.
• depvative data or files, as folkjws: " " . ■

1. The Contractor wtl) maintain proper securtiy controlB to protect Department
cp.nfidenbarinformation ooilected. processed, managed, onct/or etored In (he delivery

" of opint/e.cted services. . ; •

.  1 The.Coolreclor will maintain poDcies end procedures to protect Oepartmenl,.
" confidential Ifrformalion Ihrooghout uW inlormatior^ Hfecyde. where applicable, .(fro.rh
bastion/transformation, use, storage and secure destAJCtion) regartfiese! of th.e..
media used to store the data (i.e.. lap©, disk, paper, etc.). •. i,

•  »• j •

vs.ianupd^.ionana . cvtrfo^taitt
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3. The..ContrBCtof wtll maintain appropriate authenticalion .and areess controls to •
...cooiractor.sVstems thai collect, transmit, or'store Oepertment connctential Informalidn'

» * wtvefe appiicebic.

; r 4.-The Contractor will ensure proper securify menhonng copobistioa oa>.-in ploce to" ■
detect pdtontia! .socuriiy oyentc ihei con impoct Slate Of NH-ey^ieins ahd/r*

-  Department conftdenUal information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contrador will provide regular security awareness and education .for Its'End
•Users in support of protecting Department confWentiallnfonnatjon.

6. If the Contractor will bo sutHxintrgcting any core functions of the engagement
supporting thb services for Suie of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a '

— -program- of-'en-lntemai-procese-or- processes -that r defines-spedfic-eecurity ■ --
■  ®*Pi»ct8lions. end fnonRoftng eemplraneeto-eecyftty-feqtriremervts-that-et-djmWrnvm-

match those for the Conlrector, including breach notiflcalion reoulremiBnis.

7. "The Contractor will wor1< vwth the Department to sign, and comply wlih-all appKcabia
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and euthorUation policies ■
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as "part of

• obtaining and malnlalnjng access to any Department sysiem(s). Agreemenis .will "
corripleted and signed by the Conl/ncior and any ©pplicebie sub-bontrectbrs prior to
■6yslem..eccess being authorized. " '

6. II the Depa/tmeni determines the ConlrBctor ic e Business Associeto'purcuerii to 45
•  • CFB IW.103. tho'Contrsctor will execute a HIPAA Business.Assodete ^reerheni

.  . (BAA) v^lh .the Oepartmsnt and is responslblo for mainteining corttplianbe wHh the
agreement," .r. '

■  9. The Contractor .will worh With the Department et Its request to complote a System
'  Management Survey. The purpose of the survey (s to enable the Department arvd

Conlrador to monitor for any char^ges in risks, threats, and vulnerebHilies (hat may
,  . occ.ur over the life of the Conlractor engagement. The survey will l>e. compleled

onnualiy. of Bn.oltomate lime frame at the Departrnenis discreUon with egreemehl by.
.-.the Conir8Ct.6r. of the Department may requ.GSt the survey be compl.elod.whe.n.the
scope of the ertgagemenl between the Department ervj the Cohtraclor 'chariges. ■-i

.  10. The Contractor will rtol store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Stale of New HampshlrB "
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States "uril^

.  prior express written consent Is. obtained from the InformaUon Security Office' ' •
•  leadership member wlihin the Department. • - •.

11. Data Security Breach LlebJtity. In lho event of any security breach Contractor staH-'- "" ■■■"
".make efforts" to Investigate the ceusas of the breach, prompUy.tako'rheasures lo •
.prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss rosulling from the brbach. "
The State shall recover from the Conlractor all costs of response and recovery.from .

VS.UiiupdcHiOWIB ■ EJidtfiK CoOocJ.wtnftiftii^^
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the breach, Induding but not limited (o: credit monitonng services, malBng ooste'end
.<x»l5 as^ocaaled mlh website and telephone eel) canter services necessary due to " '
tne.breach. •

12, ConUflctor must, comply with ell applicable statutes and rogulati.qna rogardino the
pnvacy and security of Cor^lidential Infofmation. end must In ^1 other respects
rnalntafn the privacy and security of PI end PHI at a level and scope that la not less •
then the lave) and scope ol requ'iremenis applicable to led^al ogendos. Indudlna • •-
bul not llmHod to, provisions of (he Privacy Acl of 1074 (5 U.S C § 552a) DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 =
c.F.R. Pert© 160 and 164) that govern pnotecUons for indtvWuaUy IdenilfiaWe health
Infomiaton and as epplicdble under State law.

-13. ContTBdora^ees to establish end meintein eppropriale admmislralivertectintcal.-artd 'r —
physical--safegu8rds^to~proted'1he~oonfidentt3tity -ohlhe 'Conftdenifal-Data-an(J to'
prevent .unauthorized use or access to It; The safeguards must provide a-lavel end
.scope of security that is not less than the level end scope of security reQUiremenlis •
established by the State d# New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology
Refpr to Vendor Resouroes/Prowremcnl el https:/Avww.nh.gov/dolWendor/tnde*,htm
for the Department of Ihfomia.lion Tethnotogy policies.-guidelines.- standards and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. ConlfBctor agrees to maintain e documented breach notifico|ion end inddenl ■
response process. Tho Ccntroctor will r>oWy the Slate's Privacy Officer and il^
Slate's S^rity OfTicef of any security breach Immediately, at ̂ -email ̂ rossoa- -
provided in Section VI. This tndudes e confidential informabon breach, computer
aecurtty IrKfdenl. or suspected broach which affects or Indudes any Stole of New
Hampshire systems that connea to the State of New Hampshire networtt.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Conndeniiai Data obtained imder this-
Contrect to only.those oolhorlzod End Users who need such DHHS Data to .
perform their ofnclal duties in oonnecdoo with purposes idenllfied In this .Contract.

16. Tho Contractor must ensure thai ell End Uaera:

a. cornply vOth such safeguards as referenced In Section tV A." al»ve. '
Implemented'to protect Conrrdential Informetion thai is furnished by DHH'S ■=•
under this Conbect from less, theft or inadvertent disclosure..- .• ■

b. Bofeguard this information at atllimos.

c. Pnsure that laptops and other electronic devices/media conieining PHI. Pi,-a
PPl are encrypted end pass.word-protected.

... d. eend ernelto containing' Confidcnilel Informsllon only if encrypted and being
sent to; and t>eir»g received by email addresses of. persons euthortz^ to. .
.receive such Information.

vvunuwasVtwwia., ' , • e^k
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e. tlmh disckMure of the CoflfidontiBl lnformaiion to tho extent permitted by law.' '
f. Conrident)ai information received under this Contract end ..Individually

Wenlifloble dota c5erived frorn DHHS Dale, must bo ctorod in-on sfoo thel

phyeically end .technotoQicaOy secure from access by unauthorized .per^en.s
during duty hours as as norvduty hours (e.g.. door'locks. 'card keys.

.  blorhetricldenilflefs.etc.). • • . '

Q. only-aulhori^ End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including 'any -
derivative -fries containing personally idertlifiable inrormai/on.'and in. an cases,
such data must encrypted, at aD limes v4)en in iransit, at rest, or .when,
stored on portable media .as required in section iV above.

h. in all oth^ instar>ce$ Confidanlial Data must be maintained, used ond .
;  ̂ d.isclosed..'uslng .appropriate, safeguards,.8s_delennlne.d..by_a_nsk:b8sed.._

.... .Bssessment.of ib8.circumsiances.lnvofved .

I. understand that their user aedentials (user name and password) must not bo.
shored wlih anyone.' End Users will keep their credential Inforrriation secure.-
.This eppliea to credentials used to access the site directly or .Indtrecdy through
0 third par^ eppilcation.

Contractor Is responsibib for oversighl and compfiance of their End Users- DHHS
reserves .the 'right lo conduct onsile Inspections to tT>ohitor complia'nce 'wtth thle
Contract, including the privacy end security requirements provided tri herein, HiP^ '
ar>d other applicable laws orxl Podoml regulations until ouch time the Ccofidontiei. bale'
is dispos^ of in aocordance with this Contrect.

LOSS REPORTIMO

The Contractor must riotity the Slate's Privacy OfTcer and Security Officer of 'any •
Sedurity Incidents and Breaches immediately.- at the email addresses provided m .
.Section VI.

The Contractor, must further handle and report Inddenls and Breaches lnvolvlr>g PHI in.
acoordance vt^h. the agency's documer^ed Incident Handling and Breach Noti^tion
procedures end In eccordanoe with 42 C.P.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. in addnion to. end v'.
-notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with ell eppliceblo obligob'ons end procedures.
Coniractor'-s-procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. D.otermine if persoriaHy idenliftable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report 6usp>ect6d or confirmed Incldenls as required. In this Exhibit Of P-37;

4. Identify end convene e core response group to determine ̂  risk level of Incidents
. and determine risk-based responses to Indden'ts; and .:i'' '

,..vi-Leiivp<tet»,ioro6rie' EjOCtiK Cartredoitntttfi ■M "■
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VI.

5. Ootermine whelher Breach r^ificattor\ is requirod. and, it "so, identity.^propriete-
Breach notification methods, timing, source, end contents frcm among different
opUons. and beer costs essodotod vrith the Breach notice as well ea any mliigeibn

• measures. ■ .

Inddenis and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed end reported as "
oppHceWe. In eccordenoe with NH RSA 359'C:20. . '..

PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. OHHS Privacy Officjer:

OHHSPrivacypfr«cef@dhhs.nh.gov . .

■"OHHS Sawrity Qfficser. ' "
OHH'SlnformaOon$ecurityOfficc@dhhs.nh.0Ov

lO/Dane
OHHSMormoQon

Socul ry eoVkAruntna
PaoefdS

coxredorinioen
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